
 

 

     Ffôn/Tel: 01656 643643                                                   Facs/Fax: 01656 668126          Ebost/Email: talktous@bridgend.gov.uk                                                                                  

     Negeseuon SMS/ SMS Messaging: 07581 157014           Twitter@bridgendCBC              Gwefan/Website: www.bridgend.gov.uk 

Cyfnewid testun: Rhowch 18001 o flaen unrhyw un o’n rhifau ffon ar gyfer y gwasanaeth trosglwyddo testun 

Text relay: Put 18001 before any of our phone numbers for the text relay service 

Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn y Gymraeg. Rhowch wybod i ni os yw eich dewis iaith yw’r Gymraeg  
We welcome correspondence in Welsh. Please let us know if your language choice is Welsh 

Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg. 
Rhowch wybod i ni os mai Cymraeg yw eich 

dewis iaith. 
We welcome correspondence in Welsh. Please 
let us know if your language choice is Welsh. 

 

Cyfarwyddiaeth y Prif Weithredwr / Chief 
Executive’s Directorate  
Deialu uniongyrchol / Direct line /: 01656 643148 / 
643147 / 643694 
Gofynnwch am / Ask for:   
 
Ein cyf / Our ref:       
Eich cyf / Your ref:       
 
Dyddiad/Date: Dydd Mawrth, 20 Medi 2022 

 

Annwyl Cynghorydd,  
 
PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 3 
 
Cynhelir Cyfarfod  Pwyllgor Craffu Testun 3 O bell Trwy Timau Microsoft ar Dydd Llun, 26 Medi 
2022 am 16:00. 
 
AGENDA 
 
1.  Ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb    

 Derbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb gan Aelodau. 
 

2.  Datganiadau o fuddiant    
 Derbyn datganiadau o ddiddordeb personol a rhagfarnol (os o gwbl) gan Aelodau / 

Swyddogion yn unol â darpariaethau'r Cod Ymddygiad Aelodau a fabwysiadwyd gan y 
Cyngor o 1 Medi 2008.  
 

3.  Cymeradwyaeth Cofnodion   3 - 14 

 I dderbyn am gymeradwyaeth y Cofnodion cyfarfod y 16 02 2022 a 18 07 2022 
 

4.  Cronfa Ffyniant Gyffredin y Deyrnas Unedig   15 - 40 
 Gwahoddwyr: 

 
Cynghorydd John Spanswick - Aelod Cabinet Cymunedau 
Cynghorydd Neelo Farr – Aelod Cabinet Adfywio 
Cynghorydd Rhys Goode – Aelod Cabinet Llesiant a Chendlaethau’r Dyfodol 
 
Janine Nightingale - Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol, Cymunedau  
Ieuan Sherwood - Rheolwr y Grŵp - Economi, Adnoddau Naturiol a Chynaliadwyedd 
 

5.  Prosiectau Blaenoriaeth y Gronfa Lefelu i Fyny   41 - 48 

Public Document Pack

mailto:talktous@bridgend.gov.uk
http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/


 Gwahoddwyr: 
 
Cynghorydd John Spanswick - Aelod Cabinet Cymunedau 
Cynghorydd Neelo Farr – Aelod Cabinet Adfywio 
 
Janine Nightingale - Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol, Cymunedau 
Ieuan Sherwood - Rheolwr y Grŵp - Economi, Adnoddau Naturiol a Chynaliadwyedd 
Delyth Webb – Rheolwr Grwp Adfywio Strategol 
Jonathan Parsons - Rheolwr Grŵp Gwasanethau Cynllinio a Datblygu  

Richard Hughes – Prif Weithredwr, Awen 

 
6.  Casgliad/Argymhellion  

 
 

7.  Diweddariad Rhaglen Gwaith  
 

49 - 58 

8.  Materion Brys    
 I ystyried unrhyw eitemau o fusnes y, oherwydd amgylchiadau arbennig y cadeirydd o'r farn 

y dylid eu hystyried yn y cyfarfod fel mater o frys yn unol â Rhan 4 (pharagraff 4) o'r 
Rheolau Trefn y Cyngor yn y Cyfansoddiad. 
 

 
Nodyn: Sylwch: Oherwydd rhesymau iechyd a diogelwch ni fydd y cyfarfod hwn yn cael ei gynnal yn 
ei leoliad arferol.  Bydd hwn yn gyfarfod rhithwir a bydd Aelodau a Swyddogion yn mynychu o bell. 
Bydd y cyfarfod cael ei recordio i’w drosglwyddo drwy wefan y Cyngor.  Os oes gennych unrhyw 
gwestiwn am hyn, cysylltwch â cabinet_committee@bridgend.gov.uk neu ffoniwch 01656 643147 / 
643148. 
 
Yn ddiffuant 
K Watson 
Prif Swyddog, Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Rheoleiddio, AD a Pholisi Corfforaethol 
 
Dosbarthiad: 
 
Cynghowrwyr Cynghorwyr Cynghorwyr 
S J Bletsoe 
N Clarke 
C Davies 
P Davies 

M J Evans 
P W Jenkins 
MJ Kearn 
W J Kendall 

J E Pratt 
G Walter 
I Williams 
MJ Williams 



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 3 - DYDD MERCHER, 16 CHWEFROR 2022 

 

1 

COFNODION CYFARFOD Y PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 3 A GYNHALIWYD O BELL 
TRWY TIMAU MICROSOFT, DYDD MERCHER, 16 CHWEFROR 2022, AM 09:30 

 
Presennol 

 
Y Cynghorydd JPD Blundell – Cadeirydd  

 
N Clarke P Davies DG Howells JR McCarthy 
RMI Shaw JC Spanswick G Thomas MC Voisey 
JE Williams    

 
Ymddiheuriadau am Absenoldeb 
 
LM Walters 
 
Swyddogion: 
 
Joseph Cassinelli Prif Swyddog Cynllunio – Trafnidiaeth Strategol 
Janine Nightingale Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Cymunedau 
Kwaku Opoku-Addo Arweinydd y Tîm – Polisi, Datblygu a Trafnidiaeth 
Jonathan Parsons Rheolwr Grŵp Datblygu 
 
Gwahoddedigion: 
 
Cynghorydd Stuart Baldwin  
Cynghorydd Huw David  

 
146. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANT 

 
Dim 
 

147. CYNLLUNIAU TRAFNIDIAETH STRATEGOL 
 
Cyflwynodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Cymunedau yr adroddiad a oedd yn rhoi 
trosolwg o'r prosiectau a'r cynlluniau trafnidiaeth strategol presennol a phosibl yn y 
dyfodol, a gafodd ei adrodd a’i gymeradwyo gan y Cabinet ym mis Rhagfyr 2021. 
Dywedodd wrthyn nhw gael eu trafod yn helaeth gyda Llywodraeth Cymru, Trafnidiaeth 
Cymru a Network Rail cyn cael eu cyflwyno. Felly roedd y cynlluniau’n cyd-fynd â 
pholisïau, cynlluniau ac amcanion cenedlaethol yn ogystal â bod yn rhan allweddol o’u 
cynllun trafnidiaeth lleol. 
 
Cyflwynodd Rheolwr y Grŵp, Gwasanaethau Cynllunio a Datblygu, grynodeb o'r 
prosiectau a restrir yn yr adroddiad, a oedd yn cynnwys:   

 y Rhaglen Teithio Llesol; 

 Gorsaf Reilffordd Bracla Halt;  

 Gwella Gorsaf Reilffordd Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr;  

 Cyfnewidfa Heol Ewenni (Maesteg);  

 Llinell Cangen Ford;  

 Seilwaith Bws Cyflym Garw a Chymoedd Ogwr;  

 Cyffordd 36 (yr M4);  

 Pont Ffordd Penprysg;  

 Metrolink Porthcawl;  

 Porthcawl i'r Pîl/Gwelliannau Blaenoriaeth Bws Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr;  

 Adleoli Gorsaf Reilffordd y Pîl a Pharcio a Theithio.  
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 3 - DYDD MERCHER, 16 CHWEFROR 2022 

 

2 

Diolchodd y Cadeirydd i'r Swyddogion am gyflwyno'r adroddiad, ac yn dilyn hynny 
gofynnodd Aelodau'r Pwyllgor y canlynol: 
 
Cyfeiriodd Aelod at Barc a Theithio Bracla a'r amser yr oedd wedi bod ar yr agenda a 
mynegodd ei bod yn cytuno bod cynnydd wedi’i wneud ar y bont droed teithio llesol, ond 
roedd yn anghytuno â'r elfen maes parcio a oedd yn cael ei chwblhau gyntaf oherwydd 
cyllid cytundeb Adran 106.  Roedd hefyd wedi deall bod cyllid ar gael ar gyfer Cyffordd 
Singleton.   Dywedodd pe bai gorsaf Bracla yn digwydd, byddai 10-15 mlynedd i ffwrdd 
ac y byddai'r maes parcio wedi dadfeilio neu na fyddai'n addas i'r diben.  Teimlai fod 
llawer o gynlluniau da ond ar ran deithio llesol, roedd Bracla yn dal i gael ei datgysylltu o 
Ystâd Ddiwydiannol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr, gan nad oedd unrhyw lwybrau clir.  
 
Cynigiodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Gymunedau drafod y materion hyn gyda'r Aelod y tu 
allan i'r cyfarfod, gan fod yr adroddiad hwn yn ymwneud â phrosiectau trafnidiaeth 
strategol.  
 
Dywedodd Rheolwr y Grŵp, Gwasanaethau Cynllunio a Datblygu, nad oedd cyffordd 
Singleton wedi cael ei anghofio ac roedden nhw o bosibl yn edrych arni fel cynllun teithio 
llesol.  Esboniodd nad oedd ar y rhestr o brosiectau gan mai prosiect ffordd ydoedd yn 
bennaf ond nad oedd wedi osgoi eu sylw o ran teithio llesol.  
 
Cyfeiriodd Aelod at Orsaf Reilffordd arfaethedig Bracla Halt a gofynnodd am agwedd 
Network Rail ato, gan eu bod wedi gwrthwynebu sefydlu gorsaf yno o'r blaen.  Cyfeiriodd 
at yr hen ffatri arfdy ac arfau rhyfel a oedd wedi’i lleoli yno o'r blaen a bod gan y 
rheilffordd rhwng Caerdydd ac Abertawe ddolen basio. Ond nid oedd gan y rheilffordd 
rhwng Abertawe a Chaerdydd ddolen basio ac a oedd posibilrwydd o astudiaeth 
ddichonoldeb i edrych ar hyn.  
 
Dywedodd Rheolwr y Grŵp, Gwasanaethau Cynllunio a Datblygu, ei fod yn ymwybodol 
o'r ddolen basio a hanes yr ardal ac y gall edrych ar hynny yn sicr fel rhan o unrhyw 
astudiaeth ddichonoldeb, ond bod angen cyllid i ddechrau'r broses honno. Gobeithio y 
gallent dynnu arian i lawr i ymchwilio iddo'n fanylach.  Dywedodd fod Network Rail, 
Trafnidiaeth Cymru a Llywodraeth Cymru yn rhan o'r drafnidiaeth hon, er y gallai 
blaenoriaethau Network Rail fod ychydig yn wahanol gan eu bod yn ymwneud yn 
sylfaenol â gwelyau rheilffordd, traciau rheilffordd a seilwaith ac roedd angen iddynt 
barhau i redeg y gwasanaeth. Dywedodd fod angen gwthio'r Cynlluniau i fyny'r agenda 
gwleidyddol fel eu bod yn cael eu cydnabod ar lefel Llywodraeth Cymru fel y gallai'r 
Gweinidogion priodol yn Llywodraeth Cymru eu blaenoriaethu. Dywedodd fod 
blaenoriaethau'n genedlaethol wedi newid yn sylweddol dros 22 mlynedd, a bod 
ganddynt bellach ganllawiau cynllunio a chynlluniau trafnidiaeth nad oeddent wedi'u cael 
o'r blaen, gyda mwy o bwyslais ar gynaliadwyedd, lleihau allyriadau carbon a gwella 
ecolegol, felly roedd angen adlewyrchu'r newidiadau cenedlaethol hynny yn y cynlluniau 
a oedd yn mynd rhagddynt.   
 
Dywedodd Aelod ei bod yn hanfodol er mwyn ffyniant y Sir fod trafnidiaeth strategol yn 
cael ei hystyried, a bu'n rhaid iddynt gofio mai dim ond un rheilffordd oedd gan y tri 
chwm yn y sir, ond roedd sawl cyfyngiad ar gymunedau'r cymoedd yr oedd angen 
edrych arnynt wrth ystyried y farn strategol honno.  Cyfeiriodd at baragraff 4.3 yn yr 
adroddiad ynghylch teithio llesol, a bod darn tarmacio o 4.5 milltir nad oedd ond angen 
ei gysylltu â Llwybr 4 i'w wneud yn llwybr teithio llesol hyfyw ac ar gyfer teithio hamdden, 
nad oedd wedi symud ymlaen. Cyfeiriodd hefyd at baragraff 4.8 ynglŷn â'r system bws 
cyflym, gan mai dim ond un llwybr oedd gan Gwm Garw i mewn ac allan felly nid oedd 
unrhyw fannau lle y gallent gael blaenoriaethau bysiau. Oherwydd hyn roedd problemau 
o ran cael cludiant i Gymoedd Garw ac Ogwr ac nid oedd ganddynt drenau chwaith.  
Ychwanegodd hefyd fod amlder gwasanaethau trafnidiaeth gyhoeddus yn y dyffryn yn 
golygu nad oedd pobl yn gallu teithio i’r gwaith yn seiliedig ar yr amserlen bysiau.  Yn 

Page 4



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 3 - DYDD MERCHER, 16 CHWEFROR 2022 

 

3 

olaf, cyfeiriodd at Orsaf Reilffordd Tondu a oedd bod yn orsaf i gysylltu'r cymoedd ond 
nid oedd cyswllt bws â’r orsaf honno, wrth i fws y cymoedd fynd drwy Fryncethin ac ar 
draws Cyffordd 36 y draffordd. 
 
Dywedodd Rheolwr y Grŵp, Cynllunio a Gwasanaethau Datblygu fod angen iddynt 
ymchwilio i'r hyn y gellid ei wneud ond bod angen mwy o adnoddau a chyllid arnynt i 
wneud hynny a dyna pam yr oeddent wedi'i godi fel blaenoriaeth. Dywedodd eu bod yn 
ymwybodol o'r cyfyngiadau ond lle y gallent wneud gwelliannau a blaenoriaethau, hyd yn 
oed os mai dim ond ar gyfer darnau byr o'r ffyrdd hynny, byddai hynny'n sicr yn gwella'r 
rhwydwaith. Dywedodd nad oedd adnoddau bryd hynny ond y gallai gwneud cais i 
ariannu hyn fel prosiect, gobeithio, ddefnyddio adnodd yn y dyfodol, ac mai'r rhan honno 
o'r prosiect hwnnw fyddai edrych ar y gorsafoedd rheilffordd yn ardal Porth y Cymoedd a 
gwella cysylltedd â'r gorsafoedd hynny.  Dyma fyddai dechrau prosiect a oedd yn 
gobeithio gweld rhywfaint o welliant ac roedd angen ei symud i fyny'r agenda 
Rhanbarthol a Chenedlaethol. 
 
Ymatebodd yr Aelod fod angen iddynt gadw'r materion a'r agendâu hyn ar y lefel 
strategol fel nad ydynt yn diflannu am nad ydynt yn rhan o unrhyw gynllun strategol, ac 
efallai y gallai fod posibilrwydd y bydd y llwybr teithio llesol a nodwyd yn agor 4.5 milltir o 
lwybr cymunedol ar unwaith.  
 
Gofynnodd Aelod ble yng Nghronfa Codi’r Gwastad y byddai Pont Ffordd Penprysg, gan 
ei bod yn amau na fyddai rhai prosiectau'n cael eu gwireddu yn dibynnu ar ble yr 
oeddent ar y rhestr honno. Gofynnodd a fyddai'r gohiriad i'r gorllewin o'r rheilffordd yn 
Hendre yn aros yn ei le pe bai'r groesfan yn cau, a bod pont ffordd newydd yn cael ei 
darparu.  
 
Eglurodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Cymunedau eu bod yn cael cyfarfodydd misol 
ynglŷn â'r Gronfa Codi’r Gwastad, sef cronfa Llywodraeth y DU, gyda thîm Cymru a 
oedd wedi'i lunio i ymgymryd â chynorthwyo gyda’r cyllid grant. Gallai'r Awdurdod 
gyflwyno cais ar gyfer pob AS a oedd ganddo, felly roedd dau gais am gynlluniau o 
amgylch Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr, ond roeddent hefyd yn cael cyflwyno un cynllun 
trafnidiaeth strategol am hyd at £50M, a oedd ar gyfer Cynllun Pont Penprysg.  
Dywedodd fod y Tîm Codi’r Gwastad wedi dweud bod hwn yn gynllun trafnidiaeth uchel 
ei barch a fyddai'n gwneud gwahaniaeth sylweddol yn rhanbarthol, nid yn unig yn y 
Fwrdeistref ond yn yr ardaloedd cyfagos oherwydd pwysigrwydd y rheilffordd sy’n mynd 
drwy Pencoed.  Dywedodd eu bod yn cael eu hannog i gyflwyno ble maent wedi 
cyrraedd gyda’r dyluniad yr haf hwn, ac y byddai cynllun seilwaith fel hwn yn cymryd o 
leiaf deunaw mis i'w ddylunio. Roedd y broses honno ar y gweill, a byddai’n cymryd peth 
amser i'w gweithredu gan yr oedd ar reilffordd fyw. Roedden nhw wedi gofyn am hyn 
gael ei hystyried, er mwyn galluogi amserlenni ariannu i fynd ymhellach na'r amserlenni 
ar gyfer y Gronfa Codi’r Gwastad 
 
Eglurodd Rheolwr y Grŵp, Gwasanaethau Cynllunio a Datblygu, fod y gohiriad wedi bod 
ar waith ers cryn amser a'i fod wedi cael ei gynnwys mewn nifer o fersiynau o Gynllun 
Datblygu'r Awdurdod gan gynnwys yr un presennol. Nododd y byddai'n debygol o fod yn 
y cynllun datblygu newydd nesaf a'r rheswm am hynny oedd y materion traffig ym 
Mhencoed. Esboniodd pe bai'r bont yn cael ei hamnewid, a bod y groesfan reilffordd yn 
cau, yna byddai'n bosibl iddynt edrych ar y dystiolaeth i godi'r gohiriad, ond byddai 
angen iddynt adolygu pan fyddai'r seilwaith wedi'i gwblhau.  
 
Eglurwyd bod y prosiectau wedi'u cynnwys yn nhrefn yr wyddor yn hytrach nag mewn 
statws blaenoriaeth gan y byddai cyllid yn cael ei gymryd o ba bynnag lwybrau, yr 
oeddent yn gallu manteisio arnynt i gyflawni'r prosiectau hynny.  
 

Page 5



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 3 - DYDD MERCHER, 16 CHWEFROR 2022 

 

4 

Cyfeiriodd Aelod at baragraff 4.13 o'r adroddiad ynghylch Adleoli Gorsaf Reilffordd y Pîl 
a Pharcio a Theithio, a oedd, yn ei barn hi, yn bwydo i mewn i baragraff 4.11 Metrolink 
Porthcawl. Gofynnodd a fyddent yn buddsoddi ym mhwynt B cyn iddynt ddatrys pwynt A 
a gofynnodd hefyd sut yr oedd y gost wedi codi o £850k i £2M.  
 
Atebodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Gymunedau fod y £2M hwnnw'n cael ei fuddsoddi mewn 
Metrolink newydd ar gyfer Porthcawl a fyddai'n darparu gwasanaeth bws gwell a fyddai'n 
dal i gysylltu â threnau eraill yn y gorsafoedd bysiau ac felly'n dal i ddarparu'r 
gwasanaeth. Dywedodd na fyddai'r ychwanegiad a gynlluniwyd ar gyfer y Pîl wedi 
darparu'r mannau parcio ychwanegol gofynnol yn yr orsaf drenau bresennol, a dyna 
pam yr oedd yr arian wedi'i ailgyfeirio i ddarparu gwell darpariaeth ym Mhorthcawl. 
Roedd y prosiect gwreiddiol wedi bod yn strwythur agored ac nid oedd wedi gweddu â’r 
gwaith adfywio yr oedd yn rhan ohono. Cafodd ei ail werthuso felly, ac roedd y cyfleuster 
yn mynd i gael ei gau i mewn a chael to gwyrdd, felly penderfynwyd buddsoddi mwy o 
arian i'r Metrolink ym Mhorthcawl drwy ei ddargyfeirio o gynllun Parcio a Theithio'r Pîl.  
Dywedodd y byddai ganddynt y cysylltedd hwnnw o hyd drwy'r llwybrau bysiau a 
gobeithio yn y dyfodol y gallai ddarparu ar gyfer Parcio a Theithio mwy effeithiol a gwell 
yn y Pîl a fyddai'n gwella'r cysyllted â Phorthcawl hefyd.   
 
Gofynnodd yr Aelod a fyddai trigolion yn ardal Salt Lake sydd wedi'i hail ddatblygu ym 
Mhorthcawl am fyw ar bwys terfynfa fws a gofynnodd hefyd   
a oedd unrhyw sicrwydd y byddai'r cyfleuster Parcio a Theithio yn digwydd o gwbl. 
 
Eglurodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Gymunedau fod cysylltiadau trafnidiaeth yn mynd drwy 
ardaloedd preswyl ac o'u hamgylch i'w gwneud yn haws i bobl deithio a byddai hyn yn 
gwella eu gallu i symud o gwmpas Porthcawl a'r cymunedau cyfagos. Byddai arian 
ychwanegol i ddarparu Parcio a Theithio'r Pîl yn parhau i gael ei ystyried, ac roedd y 
prosiectau trafnidiaeth strategol a gafodd eu cynnwys yn yr adroddiad yn dangos y 
bwriad a'r uchelgais.  
 
Dywedodd yr Arweinydd fod canfyddiad bod y Metro'n ymwneud â rheilffyrdd yn unig, 
ond ei fod yn system seilwaith trafnidiaeth gyhoeddus integredig ar gyfer De-ddwyrain 
Cymru. Esboniodd eu bod yn gwybod o'r holl dystiolaeth ac astudiaethau y byddai cael 
cyfleusterau aros o ansawdd uchel yn effeithio o ran annog mwy o bobl i ddefnyddio 
trafnidiaeth gyhoeddus.  
 
Gofynnodd yr Aelod a fyddai llochesi bws yn Stryd John yn cael eu symud o'r stryd 
unwaith y byddai'r cyfleuster newydd ar waith yn hytrach na chael ei adael i ddirywio. 
 
Ymatebodd Rheolwr y Grŵp, y Gwasanaethau Cynllunio a Datblygu, nad oedd yn siŵr 
beth fyddai'n digwydd i'r seilwaith bysiau ar ôl i'r cyfleuster ddod i rym. Gwyddai fod y 
gweithredwyr bysiau wedi gweithio gyda'r gwasanaeth yn eithaf agos wrth gynllunio'r 
cyfleuster a'u bod yn gwbl gytûn â'r hyn yr oeddent yn ei weld fel ychwanegiad a 
gwelliant i'r sefyllfa bresennol. Dywedodd nad oeddent yn gweld unrhyw effaith sylfaenol 
ar y llwybrau yr oeddent yn gweithredu arnynt ac yr oedd y tu hwnt i’w rheolaeth a 
fyddai’n rhaid iddynt ddarparu unrhyw wasanaethau ychwanegol. 
 
Dywedodd Arweinydd y Tîm Cynllunio Trafnidiaeth Strategol nad oedd penderfyniad 
cadarn wedi'i wneud eto ynghylch a fyddai arosfannau Stryd John yn cael eu cadw fel 
cilfannau, gan y byddai angen iddynt ystyried y goblygiadau cynnal a chadw.  
 
Gofynnodd Aelod a oeddent yn edrych yn gyfannol ar ba brosiectau fyddai'n cael yr 
effaith fwyaf a'r manteision economaidd-gymdeithasol, beth oedd y blaenoriaethau ac a 
allent ddewis un prosiect, pa un fyddai hynny.  
 

Page 6



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 3 - DYDD MERCHER, 16 CHWEFROR 2022 

 

5 

Dywedodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Gymunedau nad oedd unrhyw flaenoriaeth yn eu plith 
gan eu bod yn edrych ar bob un ohonynt fel awdurdodau trafnidiaeth strategol. 
Esboniodd na allent eu rhoi mewn trefn gan fod yn rhaid iddynt ystyried y Sir gyfan i 
sicrhau eu bod yn mynd i'r afael ag anghenion pawb a oedd yn byw yno. Dywedodd y 
gallai'r holl gynlluniau ddarparu gwelliannau a manteision economaidd-gymdeithasol ac 
amgylcheddol i'r Sir gyfan.  
 
Gofynnodd Aelod sut yr oeddent yn gweld yr orsaf fysiau a threnau integredig yn 
datblygu fel canolfan drafnidiaeth.  Cyfeiriodd at y ffaith nad oedd unrhyw gysylltiadau 
bws â Chymoedd Ogwr a Garw i Orsaf Reilffordd Tondu ac awgrymodd y gallent edrych 
ar ddichonoldeb posibl canolfan integredig yno ar gyfer bysiau sy'n cysylltu â'r trên ac 
archwilio opsiwn o ddefnyddio llinell ymestyn Bro Ogwr o Orsaf Tondu i'r Pîl drwy Gefn 
Cribwr a chyswllt posibl â gorsaf y Pîl. Dywedodd yr Aelod ei fod yn gwybod bod 
Llywodraeth Cymru wedi sôn am gael mwy o reolaeth dros gwmnïau bysiau a'u cyfeirio 
at y ffordd y maent yn darparu llwybrau bysiau, ond roedd am wybod pa waith yr 
oeddent yn ei wneud drwy Lywodraeth Cymru neu drwy gydweithwyr ym Margen 
Ddinesig Prifddinas-Ranbarth Caerdydd mewn perthynas â chael mwy o gefnogaeth a 
dylanwad ar gwmnïau bysiau.  
 
Gofynnodd Rheolwr y Grŵp, y Gwasanaethau Cynllunio a Datblygu, i ba brosiect yr 
oedd yr Aelod yn cyfeirio ato ynglŷn â'r ganolfan integredig.  
 
Esboniodd yr Aelod fod tir ger Gorsaf Reilffordd Tondu a chredai y dylent fod yn 
archwilio hwn fel astudiaeth ddichonoldeb ganolfan drafnidiaeth yno gan y byddai’n 
cysylltu â’r rhwydwaith pe bai trafnidiaeth gyhoeddus yn cael ei hintegreiddio o gwbl, 
boed yn teithio llesol, yn fysiau neu'n drenau. Roedd angen edrych ar ddull integredig ar 
draws y Fwrdeistref Sirol.  
 
Dywedodd Rheolwr y Grŵp, Gwasanaethau Cynllunio a Datblygu, y gallent edrych ar 
hynny fel rhan o'r astudiaeth o flaenoriaethau a gwelliannau bysiau yn y cymoedd a sut y 
gallent wella cyfleusterau eu gorsafoedd porth.  
 
Dywedodd Arweinydd y Tîm Cynllunio Trafnidiaeth Strategol y byddai'n cael ei godi fel 
rhan o astudiaeth gam dau sy'n digwydd ar linell reilffordd Maesteg.  Esboniodd fod y 
broses ymgysylltu â rhanddeiliaid wedi'i ohirio ond bod gwaith yn dal i gael ei wneud gan 
fod gwybodaeth wedi'i gofyn o ran lleoliad defnyddwyr tir a phrawf cydrannol yn y 
dyfodol i gyd-fynd â'r astudiaeth gyfan.  
 
Cytunodd yr Arweinydd ei fod yn bwynt da ynglŷn â'r capasiti gan ei fod yn rheilffordd 
weithredol nad oedd yn cael ei defnyddio’n aml ers diwedd y gwaith glo yn hen bwll glo 
brig Margam.  Dywedodd eu bod wedi codi hyn gyda Thrafnidiaeth Cymru a gofynnodd 
i’r syniad gael ei archwilio. Credai fod rhai cyfleoedd cyffrous o amgylch Gorsaf 
Reilffordd Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr fel canolbwynt a bod mwy o gyfleoedd i annog parcio a 
theithio a chreu mwy o fywiogrwydd yn yr orsaf reilffordd o ran defnyddiau masnachol 
amgen. Daeth i'r casgliad y gallai'r pellter rhwng yr orsaf fysiau a'r orsaf reilffordd ym 
Mhen-y-bont ar Ogwr fod yn rhwystr i bobl, felly roeddent yn awyddus i ailsefydlu 
cysylltiadau bws uniongyrchol â'r orsaf reilffordd. Dyhead Trafnidiaeth Cymru yw sefydlu 
tocynnau sengl integredig fel y gallai pobl deithio o bob rhan o'r Fwrdeistref Sirol gan 
ddefnyddio tocyn Metro gan eu bod yn awyddus i gydnabod pwysigrwydd strategol 
Gorsaf Reilffordd Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr.  
 
Dywedodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Gymunedau mewn perthynas â'r cysylltedd rhwng 
bysiau a threnau, nid eu rhanbarth hwy yn unig ydoedd, roedd llai na 10% o lwybrau 
bysiau yn ymweld â gorsafoedd trên ar draws rhanbarth De-ddwyrain Cymru, felly roedd 
llawer o waith i'w wneud. Esboniodd fod angen iddynt sicrhau bod eu holl lwybrau bws 

Page 7



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 3 - DYDD MERCHER, 16 CHWEFROR 2022 

 

6 

yn cael eu trigolion i'r orsaf drenau fel y gallent greu'r cysylltedd gwell hwnnw yr oedd 
Llywodraeth Cymru a'r Fargen Ddinesig yn edrych arno.  
 
Soniodd Aelod am y posibilrwydd o gael gwasanaeth rheilffordd amlach i Faesteg ac 
oddi yno, nid yn unig i Ben-y-bont ar Ogwr ond i Gaerdydd ac archwilio'r posibilrwydd o 
gysylltiadau i deithio i'r gorllewin tuag at y Pîl a oedd yn gysylltiedig â'i awgrym 
cynharach o gael canolfan integredig yn Nhondu.  Pwysleisiodd hefyd bwysigrwydd 
trafnidiaeth gyhoeddus i gymunedau'r cymoedd gael gwasanaethau digon aml a 
dibynadwy i bobl deithio i'r gwaith. 
 
Dywedodd Aelod pe bai canolfan yn cael ei sefydlu ar safle Heol Ewenni, oherwydd 
prinder bysiau, byddai'n arwain at ddefnyddio mwy o geir yn yr ardal. Gofynnodd a fu 
unrhyw gysylltiad â Llywodraeth Cymru gan eu bod wedi gwneud ymrwymiad maniffesto 
i reoli bysiau a llwybrau.  
 
Dywedodd Rheolwr y Grŵp, Gwasanaethau Cynllunio a Datblygu, fod gwaith drwy'r 
Awdurdod Trafnidiaeth Rhanbarthol a'r Grŵp Swyddogion Trafnidiaeth Rhanbarthol yn 
edrych ar welliannau i fysiau a chynigion ar gyfer cael mwy o reolaeth dros fysiau. 
Dywedodd eu bod yn ymwybodol yn y Rhanbarth bod problemau gyda gwasanaethau 
bysiau a'u bod yn gwybod bod y pandemig hefyd wedi cael dylanwad mawr ar 
wasanaethau a gweithrediadau bysiau. Esboniodd fod yn rhaid iddynt, fel sefydliad 
strategol, ddechrau ceisio adeiladu'r cyfleusterau hynny a chaniatáu i'r gweithrediadau 
wneud eu gwelliannau eu hunain.  
 
Cyfeiriodd Aelod at Gyffordd 36 ac Ymchwiliad tua 2003 ynghylch seilwaith yno a 
thrafodaethau am ffordd osgoi bosibl i Fryncethin oherwydd tagfeydd yno dros y 
blynyddoedd.  
 
Dywedodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Gymunedau, er y gallai fod sôn am ffordd osgoi 
flynyddoedd yn ôl, erbyn hyn, mae seilwaith a chynllunio ffyrdd wedi symud ymlaen ac 
na fyddai Llywodraeth Cymru o reidrwydd yn cyhoeddi cyllid ar gyfer adeiladu ffyrdd 
newydd yn awr. Yn ogystal â hyn, gan fod newid wedi bod mewn polisi, roedd bellach yn 
ymwneud â sut y gallent wella'r seilwaith drwy drenau a bysiau. Serch hynny, roedd yn 
cydnabod bod problemau gyda Chyffordd 36. 
 
Atebodd yr Aelod nad oedd arian yn y Cyngor ar gyfer y ffordd osgoi o'r blaen a theimlai 
ei bod yn fan tagfa gyda phroblemau llygredd a thagfeydd.  
 
Esboniodd yr Arweinydd mai un o'r prosiectau yr oeddent yn edrych arno gyda 
Llywodraeth Cymru oedd yr Asesiad WelTAG o gyffyrdd traffyrdd ym Mhen-y-bont ar 
Ogwr. Fel rhan o'r adolygiad hwnnw y byddai'n anochel cynnwys cyffordd 36 ac 
ystyriaeth o'r rhwydwaith priffyrdd uniongyrchol a fyddai'n cynnwys y prif ffyrdd 
prifwythiennol i'r gyffordd. Dywedodd fod mannau eraill wedi cyflwyno mesurau 
blaenoriaeth bysiau y byddent yn eu hystyried ond hefyd yn edrych ar lwybrau teithio 
llesol effeithiol, gan fod cyffordd 36 yn aml yn orlawn gan bobl sy'n gwneud teithiau byr 
iawn ac nad oedd unrhyw lwybrau cerdded diogel yno, felly byddai sefydlu llwybr teithio 
llesol yn bwysig hefyd.  
 
Dywedodd y Cadeirydd nad oedd unrhyw gwestiynau pellach gan Aelodau'r Pwyllgor i’r 
Gwahoddedigion ar gyfer yr adroddiad hwn, diolchodd i'r Gwahoddedigion am ddod i'r 
cyfarfod a dywedodd y gallent adael y cyfarfod. 
 
DATRYSWYD:     Hynny gan roi sylw i ystyried cynnwys yr   
                          adroddiad a'r ymatebion i'r cwestiynau a ofynnwyd,  
                          gwnaeth y Pwyllgor yr argymhellion canlynol:  
 

Page 8



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 3 - DYDD MERCHER, 16 CHWEFROR 2022 

 

7 

 

1. Roedd y Pwyllgor yn cydnabod pwysigrwydd cyfarfod gyda thema strategol 
yn ogystal â sicrhau eu bod yn parhau i drafod yn strategol ar y pwnc hwn. 
Gofynnodd i adroddiad yn y dyfodol gael ei ystyried i'w gynnwys yn y 
Flaenraglen Waith ar gyfer y flwyddyn ganlynol ar drafnidiaeth ledled y Sir 
gyfan, gan gynnwys pob math o drafnidiaeth, sef teithio llesol, trafnidiaeth 
gyhoeddus,  a'r rhwydwaith ffyrdd 
 

2. O ystyried y dyhead gyda system drafnidiaeth integredig Metro De Cymru, 
argymhellodd y Pwyllgor y dylid gofyn i'r Awdurdod bwyso ar Lywodraeth Cymru i roi 
mwy o gyfarwyddyd gyda chwmnïau bysiau ar lwybrau bysiau.   
 

Argymhellodd y Pwyllgor y dylid archwilio'r posibilrwydd o gael Canolfan Drafnidiaeth ar 
gyfer y Cymoedd yng Ngorsaf Reilffordd Tondu i weld beth y gellir ei wneud i wella 
hygyrchedd i bobl o'r cymoedd i drafnidiaeth gyhoeddus ehangach, a hefyd a allai fod 
potensial i reilffyrdd ysgafn ddod i lawr y rhan o'r rheilffordd sy’n dal i fod yng 
Nghymoedd Garw ac Ogwr. 
 

148. EITEMAU BRYS 
 
Dim 
 
 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 3 - DYDD LLUN, 18 GORFFENNAF 2022 

 

1 

COFNODION CYFARFOD Y PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 3 A GYNHALIWYD YN 
REMOTELY - VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS DYDD LLUN, 18 GORFFENNAF 2022, AM 09:30 

 
Presennol 

 
Y Cynghorydd P Davies – Cadeirydd  

 
S J Bletsoe N Clarke C Davies M J Evans 
MJ Kearn W J Kendall J E Pratt G Walter 
I Williams MJ Williams   

 
Ymddiheuriadau am Absenoldeb 
 
P W Jenkins 
 
Swyddogion: 
 
Lucy Beard Swyddog Craffu 
Meryl Lawrence Uwch Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd - Craffu 
Jessica Mclellan Swyddog Craffu 

 
1. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANT 

 
Dim 
 

2. CYMERADWYO COFNODION 
 
PENDERFYNWYD:                   Derbyn Cofnodion cyfarfod y Pwyllgor Trosolwg 

Pwnc a Chraffu 3 a gynhaliwyd ar 24 Ionawr 2022 
fel rhai gwir a chywir. 

 
3. ENWEBU HYRWYDDWR RHIANTA CORFFORAETHOL 

 
Cyflwynodd y Swyddog Craffu yr adroddiad, a oedd yn gofyn i'r Pwyllgor enwebu un 
Aelod fel ei Hyrwyddwr Rhianta Corfforaethol i gynrychioli'r Pwyllgor fel gwahoddedig i 
gyfarfodydd Pwyllgor y Cabinet ar faterion Rhianta Corfforaethol. 
 
Gwahoddodd y Cadeirydd enwebiadau, ac yn dilyn hyn 
 
PENDERFYNWYD:  

Enwebu'r Cynghorydd Jonathan Pratt i  
gynrychioli'r Pwyllgor Trosolwg Pwnc a  
Chraffu 3 fel gwahoddedig i gyfarfodydd  
Pwyllgor y Cabinet ar faterion Rhianta Corfforaethol. 

 
4. ENWEBIAD I BANEL CRAFFU Y BWRDD GWASANAETHAU CYHOEDDUS 

 
Cyflwynodd y Swyddog Craffu yr adroddiad, a oedd yn gofyn i'r Pwyllgor enwebu un 
Aelod i eistedd ar Banel Craffu y Bwrdd Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus.  
 
Gwahoddodd y Cadeirydd enwebiadau, ac yn dilyn hyn  
 
PENDERFYNWYD: Bod y Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu Testun 3 yn enwebu'r 

Cynghorydd Colin Davies i fod yn aelod o Banel Craffu y 
Bwrdd Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus. 

 

Page 11



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 3 - DYDD LLUN, 18 GORFFENNAF 2022 

 

2 

5. DIWEDDARIAD AR Y BLAENRAGLEN WAITH 
 
Cyflwynodd yr Uwch Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd – Craffu y Flaenraglen 
Waith amlinellol ddrafft arfaethedig yn Atodiad A i'r Pwyllgor ei thrafod a'i hystyried. 
Gofynnodd am unrhyw wybodaeth benodol roedd y Pwyllgor wedi'i nodi i'w chynnwys yn 
yr eitemau ar gyfer y ddau gyfarfod nesaf, gan gynnwys gwahoddedigion roeddynt yn 
dymuno iddynt fynychu. Gofynnodd i'r Pwyllgor nodi unrhyw eitemau pellach i'w 
hystyried yn y Flaenraglen Waith, gan roi ystyriaeth i'r meini prawf dethol ym mharagraff 
4.6, a gofynnodd i'r Pwyllgor nodi y byddai'r Flaenraglen Waith ar gyfer y Pwyllgor yn 
cael ei chyflwyno i gyfarfod COSC, yn dilyn cylch cyfarfodydd SOSC mis Gorffennaf.  
 
Datganodd y Cynghorydd Norah Clarke fuddiant personol fel cyn-wirfoddolwr gyda 
Credu, nad oedd bellach yn bodoli.  
 
Gofynnodd y Pwyllgor i'r adroddiadau canlynol gael eu hychwanegu i'r Flaenraglen 
Waith, a gofynnodd i'r cynrychiolwyr a restrir o dan bob adroddiad gael gwahoddiad i 
fynychu yn ôl y trefniadau:  
 
a) Adroddiad ar offer chwarae hygyrch mewn mannau chwarae a mynediad at 

ardaloedd chwarae, parciau a phafiliynau meysydd chwarae, i'r gymuned anabl 
ledled y Fwrdeistref Sirol, a'r Cynllun Asesu a Gweithredu diweddaraf yn unol â 
deddfwriaeth Cydraddoldeb. 

 
Cynrychiolwyr y gofynnwyd amdanynt: 
- Anabledd Cymru - Miranda Evans  
- Swyddogion sy'n gyfrifol am Asesiad a Chynllun Gweithredu Digonolrwydd 

Cyfleoedd Chwarae BCBC  
- Defnyddwyr Gwasanaeth / Sefydliad rhai cyfleusterau  
- Y Bont - Julia Shaw  
 

b) Adroddiad ar Adfywio Porthcawl i gynnwys prosiectau Adfywio Porthcawl, Ffocws 
Buddsoddi Cyrchfan Gwyliau Porthcawl (PRIF), Cosy Corner a Phafiliwn y Grand. 
      
Cynrychiolwyr y gofynnwyd amdanynt: 
- Partneriaid a rhanddeiliaid allanol e.e. Credu / cyn-gynrychiolwyr a oedd yn 

ymwneud â'r PRIF. 
- Cynrychiolydd Croeso Cymru (mewn perthynas â gwaith PRIF) 
- Ymddiriedolaeth Ddiwylliannol Awen – fel rheolwr Pafiliwn y Grand, Porthcawl  

 
Gofynnodd y pwyllgor bod y cynrychiolwyr canlynol yn cael eu gwahodd ar gyfer yr 
adroddiadau canlynol a drefnwyd ar gyfer cyfarfod mis Medi: 
 

- Ar gyfer adroddiad y Gronfa Ffyniant Gyffredin, y Swyddogion arweiniol priodol. 
- Ar gyfer yr adroddiad Codi'r Gwastad, y Swyddogion arweiniol priodol a 

chynrychiolydd o Ymddiriedolaeth Ddiwylliannol Awen, fel rheolwyr Pafiliwn y 
Grand, Porthcawl  

 
PENDERFYNWYD:           Bod y Pwyllgor wedi ystyried a chytuno ar y Flaenraglen 

Waith amlinellol ddrafft arfaethedig yn Atodiad A, yn 
amodol ar gynnwys yr adroddiadau a gwahoddedigion 
uchod y gofynnwyd amdanynt, a nodwyd y byddai'r 
Blaenraglenni Gwaith ar gyfer y Pwyllgorau Trosolwg 
Pwnc a Chraffu yn cael eu cyflwyno i gyfarfod COSC, yn 
dilyn y cylch nesaf o gyfarfodydd SOSC. 

 
6. EITEMAU BRYS 

Page 12



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 3 - DYDD LLUN, 18 GORFFENNAF 2022 

 

3 

 
Dim 
 
Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 10:10 
 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

REPORT TO SUBJECT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 3 
 

26 SEPTEMBER 2022 
 

REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR COMMUNITIES  
 

THE UNITED KINGDOM SHARED PROSPERITY FUND 
 
1. Purpose of report  
 
1.1 The purpose of the report is to update Subject Overview and Scrutiny Committee 3 

on the United Kingdom Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF) and to provide an 

overview of proposals that may go forward via the UKSPF.   

2. Connection to corporate well-being objectives / other corporate priorities 
 

2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate well-being 
objectives under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015: 

 

• Supporting a successful sustainable economy – taking steps to make the 
county borough a great place to do business, for people to live, work, study and 
visit, and to ensure that our schools are focussed on raising the skills, qualifications 
and ambitions for all people in the county borough.  

 

• Helping people and communities to be more healthy and resilient – taking 
steps to reduce or prevent people from becoming vulnerable or dependent on the 
Council and its services. Supporting individuals and communities to build resilience, 
and enable them to develop solutions to have active, healthy and independent lives.  

 

• Smarter use of resources – ensuring that all resources (financial, physical, 
ecological, human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently as 
possible and support the creation of resources throughout the community that can 
help to deliver the Council’s well-being objectives.  

 
3. Background 
 
3.1 Following the withdrawal of the UK from the European Union on 31 January 2020, 

the UKSPF is the UK government’s replacement for the European Structural 
Investment Funds (ESIF).  

 
3.2 The UKSPF is a key part of the UK government’s Levelling Up agenda, forming part 

of complementary funding, including the Levelling Up Fund and Community 
Ownership Fund.  

 
3.3 The UKSPF will support the UK government’s wider commitment to level up all parts 

of the UK by delivering on each of the levelling up objectives to:  
 

• Boost productivity, pay, jobs and living standards by growing the private sector, 

especially in those places where they are lagging  

Page 15

Agenda Item 4



 
 

• Spread opportunities and improve public services, especially in those places where 

they are weakest  

• Restore a sense of community, local pride and belonging, especially in those places 

where they have been lost  

• Empower local leaders and communities, especially in those places lacking local 

agency  

3.4 The primary aim of the fund is to build pride in place and increase life chances across 
the UK. Underpinning this aim are three investment Priorities: communities and place; 
supporting local business and people and skills.  

 

• The Communities and Place investment priority will enable places to invest to 

restore their community spaces and relationships and create the foundations for 

economic development at the neighbourhood-level. The intention of this is to 

strengthen the social fabric of communities, supporting in building pride in place. 

• The Supporting Local Business investment priority will enable places to fund 

interventions that support local businesses to thrive, innovate and grow. 

• The People and Skills investment priority will help reduce the barriers some people 

face to employment and support them to move towards employment and education. 

Places can also target funding into skills for local areas to support employment and 

local growth. 

 

As part of the People and Skills priority there is a dedicated and ringfenced element 
of the UKSPF called Multiply which seeks to improve adult numeracy skills.  

 
3.5 Within the context of the Fund’s primary aim there is the flexibility to invest across a 

range of activities that represent the right solutions to improve local pride in place, 
increase life chances, to help spread and create opportunity, and a sense of 
community and belonging. The balance of priorities should reflect local need and 
opportunity. 

 
4. Current situation/proposal 
 
4.1 Local authorities within the Cardiff Capital Region (CCR) have been invited to 

collaborate and feed into one regional Local Investment Plan for CCR that sets out 
proposals to deliver the UKSPF to March 2025. As part of this process there is a 
need to appoint one local authority to assume the role of the ‘Lead Local Authority’ 
for the region for the UKSPF, and at its meeting in July 2022 Bridgend County 
Borough Council’s Cabinet agreed to support Rhondda Cynon Taff County Borough 
Council (RCTCBC) to assume the role of the ‘Lead Local Authority’ for the UKSPF 
for the Cardiff Capital Region. 

 
4.2 BCBC is not therefore required to develop its own Local Investment Plan to submit 

to UK Government. However, it is considered important that BCBC develop 
Bridgend County Borough Local Investment Plan information to submit to RCTCBC 
to inform the region’s Local Investment Plan and to provide clarity at the local level 
on the Bridgend County specific proposals the Council wants to achieve through the 
UKSPF.  This information was presented to Cabinet in July 2022 and Cabinet 
delegated authority to the Corporate Director Communities to submit to Rhondda 

Page 16



 
 

Cynon Taff County Borough Council the Bridgend County Borough Local 
Investment Plan information (July 2022), Appendix 1, for delivering the Bridgend 
County UKSPF funding allocation to feed into the development of the CCR Local 
Investment Plan submission to UK Government.   

 
4.3 Each local authority within the CCR will have flexibility over how they deliver 

UKSPF. Guidance from UK Government highlights that a mixture of options are 
available: competitions for grant funding; procurement; commissioning, and in-
house provision.  

 
4.4 Following a series of internal workshops with officers from across all Directorates 

within the Council a draft set of proposals was developed.  This set of proposals 
was then discussed with the County Borough’s Economic Partnership and the 
Public Service Board (PSB). In addition, the proposals have been shared and 
discussed with Members of the Senedd and Bridgend County’s two Members of 
Parliament, whose support is required for the proposed activity outlined in the 
Bridgend County Borough Local Investment Plan information.  Following 
engagement and feedback, proposals were revised before being presented to 
Cabinet in July 2022. As information and guidance evolves and further detail is 
provided it may be the case that proposals change again.    

 
4.5 Appendix 1 is set against the challenges and opportunities that have been 

evidenced through the Bridgend Economic Strategy, the Bridgend Local 
Development Plan, the (draft) Bridgend Net Zero Carbon Strategy and the  
Bridgend and Cwm Taf Wellbeing Assessment. Whilst there are clear areas of 
alignment between these documents and opportunities through UKSPF it is not the 
case that all areas are aligned, nor is it the case that UKSPF is the only source of 
funding available to deliver these key strategic documents.  

 
4.6 An overview of the current set of Bridgend County Borough Local Investment Plan 

proposals is set out below under a series of regional theme descriptions, which 
were developed by RCTCBC: 

 
Communities and Place  

 

Regional Theme Description*  Proposed Bridgend County 

delivery 

Development and resilience of communities by improving 

facilities and access to services and supporting 

community-based organisations 

Bridgend County Local Resilience 

Planning 

Action to support individuals and community-based 
organisations to deal with the challenges of the current 
economic environment and cost of living crisis  

Supporting the improvement and redevelopment of town 
centres and community places to revitalise them. 

Bridgend County Thriving 
Communities  

Improving access to and facilities for local people and 
communities in sport, culture, arts and heritage. 

Supporting action to improve services and facilities for 
young people. 

Action to support decarbonisation, energy efficiency and 
green initiatives in communities and places. 

Bridgend County Green Spaces 
Enhancement Scheme 

Page 17



 
 

Other activity such as feasibility studies  Bridgend County Community 

Future Scoping Programme 

*Bridgend County Prosperity Co-Production Framework may offer an opportunity to deliver across 
all.  

 

Supporting Local Business 
 

Regional Theme Description*  Proposed Bridgend County 

delivery 

Business premises development and improvement. Bridgend County Centres of 
Enterprise  

Small business support and development including 
finance for growth and resilience. 

-Bridgend County Business 
Prosperity Programme 
-Bridgend County Local 
Enterprise Support Programme 

Small business support for key growth sectors, research 
and development and innovation. 

Action to support decarbonisation, energy efficiency and 
green economy initiatives for businesses and social 
enterprises. 

Support for the growth and development of the visitor 
economy including businesses, facilities, and events. 

- Bridgend County Tourism 
Events Support 
- Bridgend County Local 
Destination Management and 
Marketing 

Other activity such as feasibility studies  Bridgend County Business Future 
Scoping Programme 

*Bridgend County Prosperity Co-Production Framework may offer an opportunity to deliver across 
all.  

 
People and Skills 

 
Regional Theme Description* Proposed Bridgend 

County delivery 

Regional Employability and Skills Framework Package  

• People in employment and key sectors  

• Unemployed and economically inactive people  

• Young people to enter employment  

-CELT**+ Bridgend 
Inspire 2 Work / 
Achieve  
-CELT + 
Employability -
Bridgend County 
-CELT+ Regional 
Joint Commissioning 

Regional joint commissioning  
 
Jointly commission FE/HE/ training providers / specific organisations to 
provide the following type of support  

• Wrap-around support for those at risk of disengaging from FE  

• Upskilling at work  

• Upskilling to meet skill gaps in sectors i.e., green jobs, 
manufacturing, creative and digital.  

*Bridgend County Prosperity Co-Production Framework may offer an opportunity to deliver across 
all.  
**Connect Engage Listen Thrive 

 
4.7 It is currently considered that the proposals will be taken forward via a mixture of 

delivery models considered best suited to the activities involved and at a delivery 
level considered to be most suitable as outlined in Appendix 1.  

 
4.8 The Local Investment Plan for the CCR was submitted to UK Government by 1 

August 2022. The anticipated date for the first investment plans to be approved and 

Page 18



 
 

payment awarded is October 2022 onward.  The current delivery period for the 
UKSPF is to March 2025.  

 
4.9 It is to be noted that these proposals were developed in the absence of detailed 

fund guidance from UK Government and, as such, are subject to change in relation 
to proposed activities, delivery models and funding values. 

 
4.10 The lead authority will have responsibility for a single funding agreement with the 

UK government for the full South East Wales UKSPF allocation of £278.5M and will 
be accountable for all aspects of monitoring and claiming the allocation. There will 
be a requirement for appropriate agreements between the lead authority and the 
nine other South East local authorities to pass on accountability and the terms and 
conditions of the funding to deliver UKSPF.  It is currently proposed by RCTCBC 
that this be taken forward via back-to-back agreements.  These are in development 
and will require further detailed guidance from UK Government before they can be 
finalised.  It was therefore agreed by Cabinet in July 2022 that authority be 
delegated to the Corporate Director Communities, in consultation with the Chief 
Officer – Legal, and Regulatory Services, HR and Corporate Policy, Chief Officer – 
Finance, Performance and Change and the Corporate Director – Education and 
Family Support to negotiate and enter into a CCR regional funding agreement with 
RCTCBC acting as lead authority and to enter into any further deeds and 
documents which are ancillary to the agreement or that are necessary to deliver the 
UKSPF. 

 
4.11 Whilst the development of the regional governance model and the required legal 

agreements is on-going, the governance model created at a local level through the 
Economic Strategy is in place.   

 
4.12 A two-tier governance structure has recently been implemented as the result of the 

2022 Economic Strategy, resulting in the establishment of the Bridgend Economic 
Partnership, which reports to the BCBC Economic Programme Board. Given that 
the majority of the UKSPF funded programmes address economic development 
challenges, it was agreed by Cabinet that the Economic Partnership and Economic 
Programme Board be involved in the governance and oversight of the UKSPF 
programmes within Bridgend County Borough. Close liaison and interaction will be 
required for oversight of the programmes that align more closely to the Public 
Services Board (PSB) agenda.  

 
5. Effect upon policy framework and procedure rules 
 
5.1 There is no effect upon the Council’s policy framework or procedure rules as a 

result of this report. 
 

6. Equality Act 2010 implications  
 
6.1 An initial Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) screening has identified that there would 

be no negative impact on those with one or more of the protected characteristics, on 
socio-economic disadvantage or the use of the Welsh language. It is therefore not 
necessary to carry out a full EIA on this policy or proposal at this stage. 

 

 

 

Page 19



 
 

7. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 implications 
 
7.1  The proposed UKSPF Local Investment Plan for Bridgend County Borough 

demonstrates the sustainable development principle by ensuring that by meeting 
the needs of the present they do not compromise the ability of future generations to 
meet their own needs. This is evidenced through the 5 ways of working as follows: 

 
Long-term: The elements that make up the proposed Local Investment Plan have 
been identified following discussion with key stakeholders and in relation to current 
understanding of the potential long-term challenges on the County Borough. 
Building on the process of developing and creating the Economic Strategy, the 
Local Development Plan (LDP) and the Wellbeing Plan for the County Borough it 
has been possible to set out a long-term response. 
 
Prevention: BCBC has for many years worked closely with stakeholders and the 
local business community to support the local economy in a wide variety of 
proactive ways. As well as a continuation of BCBC’s ability to react to local 
situations, the development of the UKSPF Local Investment Plan builds on 
strengths to plan for the future, take proactive action and support local businesses 
and local communities.    
 
Integration: The work to develop the UKSPF Local Investment Plan is closely 
aligned with the BCBC Corporate Plan, the Local Development Plan and the Public 
Service Board’s Well-being Plan and the Bridgend County Economic Strategy.  
 
Collaboration: The development of the UKSPF Local Investment Plan has been 
steered by a BCBC officer group and is being developed and will be delivered in 
partnership with key stakeholders. 

 
Involvement: For the UKSPF Local Investment Plan to successfully operate it will 
require the involvement of senior members of local public sectors organisations, 
community leaders, business leaders, representatives of business sectors and trade 
bodies and other key stakeholders.  

 
8. Financial implications 
 
8.1 The UKSPF provides £2.6 billion of new funding for local investment by March 2025, 

with all areas of the UK receiving an allocation from the Fund via a funding formula 
rather than a competition. 

 
8.2 All places in the UK will receive a conditional allocation from the UKSPF to cover the 

period up to March 2025.  Table 1 below details the allocation per Authority for the 
CCR. 

 
 Table 1:  UKSPF allocation in CCR 

Individual 
authorities 

Core UKSPF 
£ 

Multiply 
£ 

Total 
£ 

% of regional 
allocation 

Blaenau Gwent 23,301,572 4,863,920 28,165,492 10.11 

Bridgend 19,116,296 3,990,295 23,106,591 8.30 

Caerphilly 28,272,298 5,901,499 34,173,797 12.27 

Cardiff 34,587,594 7,219,740 41,807,334 15.01 

Merthyr Tydfil 22,698,977 4,738,136 27,437,113 9.85 

Page 20



 
 

Monmouthshire 5,919,533 1,235,631 7,155,164 2.57 

Newport 27,177,563 5,672,986 32,850,549 11.79 

Rhondda 
Cynon Taf 

37,320,994 7,790,305 45,111,299 16.20 

Torfaen 20,431,241 4,264,774 24,696,015 8.86 

Vale of 
Glamorgan 

11,606,505 2,422,717 14,029,222 5.04 

Total for the 
region 

230,432,573 48,100,003 278,532,576 100.00 

 
8.3 Bridgend’s allocation is 8.3% of the total allocation for the region.  Guidance from UK 

Government currently suggests that funding is broken down to a fixed yearly 
allocation for core UKSPF; 12% in Year 1 (22/23), 24% in Year 2 (23/24) and 64% in 
Year 3 (24/25).  For Multiply allocations, the breakdown is 30% in Year 1 (2022/23), 
35% in Year 2 (2023/24) and 35% in Year 3 (2024/25) as shown in table 2 below.   

 
 Table 2: Bridgend County UKSPF allocation  

2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 Totals 

Core UKSPF £2,293,955.52 £4,587,911.04 £12,234,429.44 £19,116,296.00 

Multiply £1,197,088.50 £1,396,603.25 £1,396,603.25 £3,990,295.00 

Totals £3,491,044.02 £5,984,514.29 £13,631,032.69 £23,106,591.00  
15% 26% 59% 100% 

 
8.4 It is important to note that there is no indication currently that any funding not utilised 

in-year can be carried forward into future years, so may be lost if it is not spent in line 
with allocations. Mechanisms are being explored with other Local Authorities in the 
region and with UK Government in relation to flexibility around this.  In addition, 
current guidance suggests that up to 4% of each area’s allocation can be used for 
administration purposes, either local and/or regional associated costs. Further 
guidance is expected from UK Government in relation to this. 

 
8.5 Bridgend’s allocation through the UKSPF is currently £23,106,591 (inclusive of a 

possible 4% administration budget).  The current profiled expenditure in table 3 
below, inclusive of a possible 4% administration budget and Multiply, is £25,295,345. 
As a result, the programme is currently over-committed based on proposals 
developed to date by £2,188,754.00.   

 
 Table 3: Bridgend County UKSPF proposals 

 Total 

Total spend proposed to 
date 

£ 25,295,345.00  

 

UKSFP Allocation 
£ 23,106,591.00  

 
Over allocation £2,188,754.00 

 
8.6 In addition, officers have been advised of a request by the Cardiff Capital Region City 

Deal Team to ‘top-slice’ an element of Bridgend’s UKSPF allocation for delivery of a 
regional proposal, which was agreed by the Chief Executives of the Local Authorities 
in the region.  The value of the top-slice is £334,000.  This would result in table 4 
below.  

 
             

Page 21



 
 

Table 4: Bridgend County UKSPF proposals including regional top-slice 
 

  Total 
Total BCBC proposals to 
date 

£25,295,345.00 

  
CCR Top-slice £334,535.00 
Uplifted total £25,629,880.00 
UKSFP Allocation £23,106,591.00 

  

Over allocation including 
CCR top-slice 

£2,523,289.00 

 
8.7 Once further guidance is issued and reviewed these values may change as officers 

review proposed activity. In September 2022 officers submitted a growth pressure 
proposal as part of the 2023-2027 Medium Term Financial Strategy process for the 
shortfall in funding of £2,523,289 to ensure full delivery of the proposed activities 
outlined in Appendix 1.  

 
8.8  If this growth pressure proposal is not approved and the programme remains over-

allocated then the responsibility for identifying gap funds for each of the proposed 
areas of delivery rests with the respective BCBC lead directorates.  Should gap funds 
not be identified prior to delivery then available budgets for delivery will only be those 
available through the UKSPF and the proposals delivered will be those already 
developed in line with the UKSPF funding allocation as spend cannot exceed 
available budgets.  If however gap funding is identified then it will be possible to 
enhance delivery.   

  
9. Recommendations 
 
9.1 It is recommended that the Subject Overview and Scrutiny Committee 3 notes the  

report. 
 
 
Janine Nightingale 
CORPORATE DIRECTOR, COMMUNITIES  
12 September 2022  

 
 

Contact Officer: Ieuan Sherwood  
Group Manager Economy, Natural Resources and Sustainability 
 

Telephone:  (01656) 815333 
 
E-mail:  Ieuan.Sherwood@bridgend.gov.uk  
 
Postal Address: Civic Offices, Angel Street, Bridgend, CF31 4WB 
 
Background documents: 
 
 

Page 22



 
 
 www.bridgend.gov.uk 

 
1 

 

 

 

 

 

United Kingdom Shared 
Prosperity Fund (UKSPF) 

 
Bridgend County Borough 
Local Investment Plan 
information 
Challenges, Opportunities and Proposals 
 
 
 
 
July 2022 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Bridgend County Borough Council 

Page 23

http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/


 
 
 www.bridgend.gov.uk 

 
2 

 

Contents 

UKSPF Programmes Overview ............................................................................................. 3 

Local Challenges and Opportunities ...................................................................................... 4 

Summary of Project Proposals .............................................................................................. 8 

1. Community and Place ................................................................................................... 8 

2. Supporting Local Business .......................................................................................... 10 

3. People and Skills ......................................................................................................... 12 

Local Governance ............................................................................................................... 13 

Risks ................................................................................................................................... 15 

Summary of UKSPF Programme Proposals ........................................................................ 16 

Community and Place ..................................................................................................... 16 

Supporting Local Business .............................................................................................. 17 

People and Skills............................................................................................................. 18 

 

  

Page 24

http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/


 
 
 www.bridgend.gov.uk 

 
3 

 

UKSPF Programmes Overview 

The UKSPF will support the UK government’s wider commitment to level up all parts of the 
UK by delivering on each of the levelling up objectives:  

• Boost productivity, pay, jobs and living standards by growing the private sector, 
especially in those places where they are lagging Spread opportunities and improve 
public services, especially in those places where they are weakest 

• Restore a sense of community, local pride and belonging, especially in those places 
where they have been lost 

• Empower local leaders and communities, especially in those places lacking local 
agency 

 
Within the overarching objective of the UKSPF of building pride in place and increasing life 
chances, there are three key investment priorities: 

1. Community and Place 
2. Supporting Local Business 
3. People and Skills 

 
Within each of these investment priorities are the following objectives: 

Communities & Place  
• Strengthening social fabric and fostering sense of local pride and belonging 

• Building resilient, safe and healthy neighbourhoods, through targeted improvements 
to the built environment and innovative approaches to crime prevention. 

People & Skills  
• Boosting core skills and support adults to progress in work 

• Reducing levels of economic inactivity through intensive life and employment support 
Supporting people furthest from the labour market to overcome barriers to work 

• Supporting local areas to fund gaps in local skills provision to support people to 
progress in work 

Supporting Local Businesses  
• Creating jobs and boosting community cohesion, through investments that build on 

existing industries and institutions 

• Promoting networking and collaboration 

• Increasing private sector investment in growth-enhancing activities, through targeted 
support for SMEs to undertake new-to-firm innovation, adopt productivity-enhancing, 
energy efficient and low carbon technologies and techniques, and start or grow their 
exports. 

 
This document identifies the challenges and opportunities identified through a number of key 
strategic documents in Bridgend County Borough which identify potential areas of alignment 
with the UKSPF. The document also highlights some areas of opportunity that align with the 
UKSPF. Current thinking in relation to governance arrangements for programme oversight 
and fund disbursement, and programme risks are detailed, to ensure that the programmes 
are well structured, fairly administered, and deliver real outcomes to the residents, 
businesses and communities in Bridgend County Borough. 
 
It is important to note however that detailed technical guidance is yet to be published and 
therefore the information contained, whilst valid at the time of writing is subject to change.  

  

Page 25

http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/


 
 
 www.bridgend.gov.uk 

 
4 

 

Local Challenges and Opportunities 

The Bridgend Economic Strategy, the Bridgend Local Development Plan, the (draft) 
Bridgend Net Zero Carbon Strategy and the  Bridgend and Cwm Taff Wellbeing Assessment 
set out key challenges across and within each of the three key investment priorities, 
accompanied by substantial evidence from research and from stakeholder engagement and 
consultations.  Whilst there are clear areas of alignment between these documents and 
opportunities through UKSPF it is not the case that all areas are aligned, nor is it the case 
that UKSPF is the only source of funding available to deliver these key strategic documents.  

Challenges aligned to Community and Place theme include: 

• Local resilience planning: Support for local communities to undertake local 
resilience planning, focusing on Health, Climate and Economy. Linked directly to 
future delivery of key local strategies, such as the Climate Response Programme, 
Local Development Plan, Wellbeing Plan and Economic Strategy. 

• Nature recovery and resilience: There is a pressing need for action to build resilient 
ecological networks across our whole land and seascape to safeguard species and 
habitats and the benefits they provide, addressing the root causes of biodiversity 
loss, and targeting interventions to help species recover where necessary (Economic 
Strategy, Wellbeing Assessment). 

• Decarbonisation of the economy: The need for individual, business and community 
action to live more sustainably has been identified in community engagement work, 
and detailed in the Net Zero Carbon Strategy, Wellbeing Assessment and Economic 
Strategy.  

• Transport Infrastructure: Lack of, or deficiencies in, public transport infrastructure, 
especially regarding “last mile” connectivity, particularly in the valleys (Economic 
Strategy). 

• Active Travel: The need to expand active travel infrastructure beyond current plans 
(Economic Strategy, Net Zero Carbon Strategy, Wellbeing Assessment). 

• Town Centres: Bridgend Town Centre in particular needs improvement, but all the 
town centres need attention (Economic Strategy, Local Development Plan). 

• Inequality: The Economic Strategy, Local Development Plan and the Wellbeing 
assessment all identify substantial inequalities between areas (in terms of 
wealth/income, educational attainment, access to resources and employment, 
transport and digital connectivity). 

• Community Safety: Whilst crime is generally lower in Bridgend than in many areas 
of Wales, there remain concerns for some feeling safe walking after dark, in 
particular, some worried about anti-social behaviour and gangs gathering (Wellbeing 
Assessment). 

• Feasibility Planning: Feasibility studies will provide the required data, knowledge 
and understanding leading to further funding bids and will underpin the development 
of future bids to LUF, UKSPF and other strategic funds from any other relevant 
sources. 

 
There are already 4 major projects ongoing in the County Borough which will all contribute to 
significant improvements across Bridgend:  

• the proposed plan for Bridgend Town Centre in the Bridgend Town Centre 
Masterplan; 

• the renovation of the Maesteg Town Hall; 

• the development plans for Porthcawl waterfront; 

• and the “Employment Land” plans for the industrial areas outside Bridgend Town.   
 
 
 
 

Page 26

http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/


 
 
 www.bridgend.gov.uk 

 
5 

 

Opportunities aligned to Community and Place theme include:  

• Establishment of community resilience committees, the development of a ‘Resilience 
Hwb’ (a virtual hub as well as physical location) offering exhibition, demonstration 
space and a trader’s corner. 

• A fund for community-driven resilience response actions such as feasibility, action 
plans, options appraisals, and a scheme for community projects to include some 
capital. 

• Work with community venues, tying in cultural and heritage sites, to increase 
engagement in the community and sustainability of community groups. 

• Review, refresh and deliver the Nature Recovery Plan in Bridgend to create and 
improve green space. 

• Ensure suitable commercial premises, and flexible working spaces / co-working 
spaces. 

• Coordinating net-zero strategies across the County Borough, including 
public/private/voluntary sectors. 

• Create a long-term programme for rolling out low-carbon retrofitting solutions to the 
wider borough. 

• Support the attractions in the Valleys and Coast through improved signage and 
marketing.  

• Develop more accommodation options to increase the visitor capacity of the area 

• Working with cultural groups to increase and broaden the cultural opportunities 
across the County. 

• Coordinating the planning of public transport services into the evening to support the 
local night-time economy and to support last-mile public transport connectivity.  

Challenges aligned to Supporting Local Businesses theme 

include:  
Challenges identified though broad stakeholder engagement for the Economic Strategy in 
2021 additionally identified: 

• Visitor Attraction / Marketing: A perception of poor marketing and PR for Bridgend 
County (outside of the county) as a place to live and work (Economic Strategy) 

• Decarbonisation: Significant challenges to businesses due to climate change, and 
the imperative to move to a low-carbon economy (Economic Strategy, Net Zero 
Carbon Strategy) 

• Business Premises: A lack of available and suitable business premises prevents 
the Bridgend County business community from reaching its full potential with 
businesses required to be put on a waiting list for premises (Economic Strategy, 
Local Development Plan) 

• Recruitment: Difficulties to recruit skilled individuals, specifically in hospitality, 
tourism, care etc., but more widely too (Economic Strategy consultations) 

• Business Skills: Businesses require a skilled workforce, but they also need specific 
business skills to meet their full potential.  The 2021 business survey undertaken by 
the council indicated that marketing, social media and digital skills (ranging from 
basic knowledge of Microsoft products to more technical IT knowledge) were deemed 
particularly important for local businesses.  Industry-specific skills such as food 
hygiene were also indicated as important. 

 

Opportunities aligned to Supporting Local Business theme 
include:  

• Working across sectors to support businesses to diversify, decarbonise and grow 

Page 27

http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/


 
 
 www.bridgend.gov.uk 

 
6 

 

• Support for the creation of development and investment plans, built on local needs 
and engagement and the creation of 'fund ready' business plan and delivery 
propositions. 

• Strategic capital interventions across the County that support adaptations to existing 
(council-owned) property to create more diverse business accommodation and 
development of new property. 

• A local enterprise support programme to provide case and account management, 
training, advice and support to existing businesses and support the development of 
new business ideas. 

• Supporting existing and developing tourism events across the County that offer 
opportunities in relation to targeted and niche markets and delivering a range of 
seasonal and targeted marketing campaigns in partnership with the local tourism 
industry. 

Challenges aligned to People and Skills theme include: 

• Skills Gaps: Bridgend County has a structural economic constraint of skill shortage 
which has caused a trend of long-term unemployment (2021 Economic Strategy).  
This has meant that over time, families and communities have become embedded in 
cycles of unemployment, exacerbating already existing issues of deprivation and 
inequality.    

• Economic Inactivity / Worklessness: The Economic Strategy and Wellbeing 
Assessment identify deep-rooted economic and social problems within some areas of 
Bridgend County Borough.  This is most clearly recognised in the labour market 
where there are issues of high economic inactivity (almost 30% in some areas) and 
significant geographical inequality. There is a large pool of jobless people who are 
potentially available to work, although a significant proportion of whom are likely to 
require varying degrees of assistance to re-enter the labour market one of the large 
drivers of the higher economic inactivity rate is a comparatively high number of 
people who are long-term sick.   

• Young People Not in Education, Employment or Training (NEET): There is a 
need to reduce the number of 11 to 19-year-olds who are in education but at risk of 
becoming not in education, training, or employment (Pre-NEET), and those who are  
16 to 24-year-olds who are NEET, to bring about their sustainable integration into the 
labour market, thereby contributing to a reduction in youth unemployment (Economic 
Strategy, Wellbeing Assessment). 

 

Opportunities aligned to People and Skills theme include:  
For Bridgend County, capacity building is essential across all levels of the community, to 
develop skills and competencies to take greater control of their own lives and contribute to 
inclusive local development. 
 

• There is significant untapped economic potential to be unlocked by facilitating re-
skilling and up-skilling of the existing workforce.  

• Continued focus on basic skills is needed to ensure workforce (and potential 
workforce) with a strong and broad set of basic skills that encourages people into 
work and ensures they can succeed.  

• Bridgend County can capitalise on its strong background in the advanced 
manufacturing sector, bringing economic advantage as that sector develops and 
enabling Bridgend County to consolidate its position as a regional hub. 

• The Low Carbon economy is set to expand rapidly and create a wealth of new jobs.  
Bridgend County can capitalise on this with the right training programmes, aligned to 
national and local strategies to de-carbonise the economy. 

Page 28

http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/


 
 
 www.bridgend.gov.uk 

 
7 

 

• Support young people to make a positive transition into education, employment or 
training when they leave school, reduce the number of 11 to 24-year-olds who are 
NEET, and address wider issues such as poor emotional/physical/sexual health and 
youth homelessness. 

• Boost learning, skills and employability in the immediate and future workforce 
especially those cohorts with barriers to establishing a secure employment situation.  

  

Page 29

http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/


 
 
 www.bridgend.gov.uk 

 
8 

 

Summary of Project Proposals 

1. Community and Place  

Bridgend County Local Resilience Planning 

Support for local communities to undertake local resilience planning, focusing on Health, 
Climate and Economy, linked directly to future delivery of key local strategies, such as the 
Climate Response Programme, Local Development Plan, Wellbeing Plan and Economic 
Strategy. To include activities such as community resilience analysis, the establishment of 
community resilience committees, support for community-driven resilience response actions, 
the development of the ‘Resilience Hwb’ (a virtual hub as well as a physical, town centre 
location) offering exhibition, demonstration space and a traders corner. Also, Resilience Hwb 
on tour (a series of local-level talks, seminars and workshops targeted at the local level.  In 
addition to this the options for action in relation to sites identified as community challenges 
will be explored.  
This will be delivered at a local level using a mix of in-house, commissioning and 
procurement. 

Current proposed value 
£1,000,050 

Bridgend County Thriving Communities 
Part (a): Community Capacity and Development Building Programme  
The community development and building capacity programme will include a range of new 
approaches co-produced with people and communities including the delivery of some 
approaches and programmes that have previously been progressed as pilot phases of 
development. This could include a new third sector fund to replace similar previous locally 
administered grant programmes.   
 
Part (b): Transforming Bridgend County Borough/ Transforming Commercial Centres  
Transforming Bridgend will support the design, development and feasibility of projects 
already identified through local placemaking and masterplaning strategies. 
The capital element will extend funding to support commercial property grants beyond main 
town centres (outside of Transforming Towns Boundary), but also support major town centre 
infrastructure projects as match funding to the Transforming Towns programme.  
 
Thriving Communities will be delivered at a local level using a mix of in-house, 
commissioning, procurement, and grant fund. 
 

Current proposed value 
£2,080,000 

Bridgend County Green Spaces Enhancement Scheme 
Part (a): Bridgend County Local Nature Plan 
This will take forward the delivery of the Bridgend County Local Nature Plan and deliver key 
actions outlined in the Biodiversity and Ecosystems Recovery Plan.  A targeted approach will 
be adopted to carry out a wide range of locally focused biodiversity enhancement schemes 
based on local engagement and local involvement. Alongside this, a 'biodiversity' budgeting 
concept will be rolled out with resources being made available for community-led green 
space and biodiversity enhancement activities.   
This will be delivered at a local level, although it has the opportunity to operate on a Sub-
regional level, using a mix of in-house, commissioning and procurement. 
  

Page 30

http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/


 
 
 www.bridgend.gov.uk 

 
9 

 

Part (b): The Great Glamorgan Way.  
This is a project which aims to continue to deliver a coherent 270KM network of green 
corridors within the South Wales Central region for the purposes of improving bridleway 
access and habitat connectivity. The project will also continue to develop its work on 
assessing and growing the economic impact the network will have with the varying local 
communities it passes through. 

Current proposed value 
£725,000 

Bridgend County Community Future Scoping programme 
Support the creation of development and investment plans, built on local needs and 
engagement and the creation of 'fund ready' business plans, funding bids and delivery 
propositions. 
This will be delivered at a local level using a mix of in-house, commissioning, procurement, 
and grant fund. 

Current proposed value 
£400,000 

Bridgend County Prosperity Co-Production Framework  
This cross-cutting framework will provide the opportunity to adopt a co-production approach 
to design and delivery and adaptable and responsive delivery mechanisms by specialist 
organisations with targeted local to regional delivery in response to needs as they are 
considered to be and change.  This will be delivered locally and will involve in-house, 
commissioning, procurement and grant fund. 

Current proposed value 
£1,000,000 
 

  

Page 31

http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/


 
 
 www.bridgend.gov.uk 

 
10 

 

2. Supporting Local Business 

Bridgend County Business Prosperity programme 
This programme will work across sectors to support businesses to diversify, decarbonise 
and grow through a wide range of targeted, clustered and County-wide interventions that 
enhance the capacity of businesses to develop and support opportunity maximisation. This 
will be delivered at a local level using a mix of in-house, commissioning, procurement and 
grant fund. 

Current proposed value 
£1,100,000 

Bridgend County Business Future Scoping programme 

Support the creation of development and investment plans, built on local needs and 
engagement and the creation of 'fund ready' business plans, funding bids and delivery 
propositions. This will enable the exploration of longer-term options to diversify, decarbonise 
and grow This will be delivered at a local level using a mix of in-house, commissioning, 
procurement and grant fund. 

Current proposed value 
£425,000 

Bridgend County Centres of Enterprise 
A series of strategic capital interventions across the County that support adaptations to 
existing property to create more diverse business accommodation and development of new 
property. This could include the target to develop the ‘Net-Zero market’.  Examples, such as: 

• Bridgend carbon neutral indoor market  

• Industrial property development 

• Town centre business premises  
This will be delivered at a local level using a mix of in-house, commissioning and 
procurement. 

Current proposed value 
£ 3,500,000 

Bridgend County Local Enterprise Support Programme 
A local enterprise support programme to provide case and account management, training, 
advice and support to existing businesses and support the development of new business 
ideas. To enable a focus on ‘meanwhile’ spaces as a mechanism for businesses to test new 
products and markets and a series of meet-the-buyer-focused interventions.  This would 
work with the Bridgend Business Forum. 
This will be delivered at a local level using a mix of in-house, commissioning and 

procurement. 

Current proposed value 
£450,000 

Bridgend County Tourism Events Support 
Tourism events support will provide a tiered approach to supporting existing and developing 
tourism events across the County that offer opportunities in relation to targeted and niche 
markets.  Coordination will be through a central portal and point of contact that will enable 
local supply chain development.  Alongside these opportunities to identify suitable assets 
and event spaces will be explored and developed as is considered feasible. This will be 
delivered at a local level using a mix of in-house, commissioning, procurement, and grant 
fund. 

Page 32

http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/


 
 
 www.bridgend.gov.uk 

 
11 

 

Current proposed value 
£450,000 

Bridgend County Local Destination Management and Marketing 
This will enable local attraction enhancement and support the delivery of a range of seasonal 
and targeted marketing campaigns in partnership with the local tourism industry.  That 
partnership approach will support the development of a new and unique range of package 
offers. 

Coordination of County wide destinations will enable the local economy to better respond to 
peak and seasonal demand placed upon it by tourism and ensure that visitor experience is 
enhanced. This will be delivered at a local level using a mix of in-house, commissioning, 
procurement and grant fund. 

Current proposed value 
£150,000 

Bridgend County Prosperity Co-Production Framework  
This cross-cutting framework will provide the opportunity to adopt a co-production approach 
to design and delivery and adaptable and responsive delivery mechanisms by specialist 
organisations with targeted local to regional delivery in response to needs as they are 
considered to be and change.  This will be delivered locally and will involve in-house, 
commissioning, procurement and grant fund. 
 

Current proposed value 
£1,000,000 

 
  

Page 33

http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/


 
 
 www.bridgend.gov.uk 

 
12 

 

3. People and Skills 

CELT+ (as part of a regional model) 
This programme has 3 parts: 

CELT + Bridgend Inspire 2 Work /Achieve 

Preventative work with Key Stage 3 and Key Stage 4 and other young people who are 
disengaging and disengaged with education, training and employment and need support to 
secure a suitable post-16 destination. Resources for participants (homeless, poor digital 
skills) to engage with services. The programme will delivery on the CELT model of 
engagement, community based using third sector partners as the point of contact, health 
board, young people. 

This will be delivered locally and there is an aspiration for it to be co-ordinated regionally by 
a lead Local Authority. It will be delivered locally via in house, commissioning and 
procurement.  

Current proposed value 
£3,150,000 

CELT+ Employability - Bridgend County 
The programme will support a number of key intervention stages to support people within the 
County Borough: Getting involved; Becoming more employable; accessing employment; 
staying in employment; employment progression.  
The programme will delivery on the CELT model of engagement, community based using 
third sector partners as the point of contact, health board, young people. 
This will be delivered locally and there is an aspiration for it to be co-ordinated regionally by 
a lead Local Authorities will be delivered locally via in house, commissioning and 
procurement. 

Current proposed value 
£4,000,000 

CELT+ Regional Procurement Opportunities  
In order to support clients to achieve the best and most sustainable job we will work with 
regional partners, supported by the Regional Skills Partnership, to procure appropriate 
support for the CELT + cohort which will provide training and support to all age clients in 
Bridgend to access opportunities across the region. These industries which are currently 
new and niche are expecting high growth and investment and are predicted to provide 
secure sustainable employment going forward requiring skills which will be in high demand 
in the future. 

Current proposed value 
£875,000 

Multiply - Bridgend County 
Multiply is a standalone programme within the UKSPF that will seek to support adults (19+) 
by improving their functional numeracy skills through free personal tutoring, digital training, 
and flexible courses. 
 
UK Government has defined success measures under the Multiply programme as: 

1. More adults achieving maths qualifications / participating in numeracy courses (up to 
and including Level 2/ SCQF Level 5). 

2. Improved labour market outcomes e.g. fewer numeracy skills gaps reported by 
employers, and an increase in the proportion of adults that progress into sustained 
employment and / or education. 

3. Increased adult numeracy across the population. 

Page 34

http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/


 
 
 www.bridgend.gov.uk 

 
13 

 

A range of delivery mechanisms are being explored for Multiply within the region and at a 
local level.  Therefore, it is currently considered that it will be delivered locally via in house, 
commissioning and procurement. 

Current proposed value 
£3,990,295 

Bridgend County Prosperity Co-Production Framework  
This cross-cutting framework will provide the opportunity to adopt a co-production approach 
to design and delivery and adaptable and responsive delivery mechanisms by specialist 
organisations with targeted local to regional delivery in response to needs as they are 
considered to be and change.  This will be delivered locally and will involve in-house, 
commissioning, procurement and grant fund. 

Current proposed value 
£1,000,000 
 

Local Governance 

 
A two-tier governance structure has recently been implemented at a local level as the result 
of the 2022 Economic Strategy, resulting in the establishment of the Bridgend Economic 
Partnership, which reports to the BCBC Economic Programme Board. Given that the 
majority of the potential UKSPF funded programmes address economic development 
challenges, it is proposed that the Economic Partnership and Economic Programme Boards 
are appropriate structures for governance and oversight of the UKSPF programmes within 
Bridgend County Borough. Close liaison and interaction will be required for oversight of the 
programmes that align more closely to the Public Services Board (PSB) agenda.  
 
This is represented in the following diagram: 
 

 
 
 
The focus will be on balancing requirements for business recovery/growth with community 
wellbeing, environmental imperatives and ecological health, and recommending short, 
medium and longer-term actions to address these. 
 

Page 35

http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/


 
 
 www.bridgend.gov.uk 

 
14 

 

The council already has well-established governance models for programme execution in 
the existing Programme Board model. This model, along with the existing Council, Cabinet 
and Committee structures is employed to ensure democratic oversight, decision making and 
accountability for decisions that affect the communities, businesses and the natural 
environment. The Economic Programme Board is comprised of representatives from key 
departments, is chaired by the relevant cabinet member or director, and reports into the 
Cabinet and Corporate Management Board (CCMB). 

 

  

Page 36

http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/


 
 
 www.bridgend.gov.uk 

 
15 

 

Risks 

 

UKSPF funded proposals face a number of key risk areas that could impact their success in 
achieving the target outcomes. General risks include: 

• Mobilisation and scale-up of delivery capacity: there is a significant amount of 
delivery expected within a two-year period. A key risk relates to a failure to recruit 
sufficient project delivery staff, to ensure capacity to deliver (this applies equally to 
BCBC staff and staff within delivery partners). 

• Insufficient funds to complete target objectives: In preparing the UKSPF 
proposals, informed assumptions have had to be made regarding the cost of delivery. 
Given ongoing inflationary pressures, there is a risk that funding falls short of the 
actual cost to deliver. 

• Stakeholder Engagement: All of the proposals will require on-going engagement 
with local residents, businesses and stakeholders in order to deliver true co-
production of programmes. Insufficient engagement with stakeholders will lead to 
poor take up of opportunities provided by UKSPF, resulting in likely shortfalls in 
target outcomes.  

• Poor collaboration / alignment across delivery partners and within the council: 
Effective collaboration across council departments and delivery partners will be vital 
to ensure effective and integrated delivery planning and delivery. 

• Council Processes: The ability of participating local authorities to process all the 
required actions within a timely manner will be vital to delivery success.  

• Unknown support landscape from March 2023: There exists a risk of planning a 
programme without full knowledge of the support landscape post March 2023, which 
may subsequently turn out to be insufficient to sustain the programme. 

• Significant external events: large scale, disruptive external events or developments 
(e.g. Covid, International Conflict) beyond the influence of BCBC or delivery partners 
could cause significant disruption / delay to delivery programmes. 

• Poor quality of contractors: Where contractors are required to deliver works or 
elements of a programme, it is essential that appropriate minimum quality standards 
are maintained. 

• Alignment of UKSPF with Welsh Government Programmes and funding: It will 
be important to ensure alignment between UKSPF and WG programmes and funding 
streams, to maximise the benefits from both. 

• Timing of UKSPF funding: Delays in the decision-making timetable of UKSPF could 
have knock-on impacts in relation to the delivery timetable of UKSPF.  

 

 
  

Page 37

http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/


 
 
 www.bridgend.gov.uk 

 
16 

 

Summary of UKSPF Programme Proposals 

Community and Place 
Proposals Activities Delivery model Delivery level Current proposed 

value 
 

Bridgend County 
Local Resilience 

Planning 

Health; Economy; 
Climate 

In-house; commission; 
procurement 

Local; sub-regional £1,000,050 

Bridgend County 
Thriving 

Communities 

Capital/revenue grant 
fund for community 

group access 

In-house/commission; 
grant fund 

Local £2,080,000 

Bridgend County 
Green Spaces 
Enhancement 

Scheme 

Targeted green space 
and biodiversity 
enhancement 

programme, including 
Great Glamorgan Way 

In-house; commission; 
procurement 

Local; sub-regional £725,000 

Bridgend County 
Community Future 

Scoping programme 

Fund to test the 
feasibility of longer 
term community-led 

ideas 

In-house/commission; 
grant fund 

Local £400,000 

Bridgend County 
Prosperity Co-

Production 
Framework 

Core fund to support 
deliverability across all 

themes 

In-house; grant fund Local £1,000,000 

    £5,205,050 

 
 

Page 38

http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/


 
 
 www.bridgend.gov.uk 

 
17 

 

Supporting Local Business 
Proposals  Activities Delivery model Delivery level Current proposed 

value 
 

Bridgend County 
Business Prosperity 

programme 

Grant fund to support 
business 

diversification, 
decarbonise and 

growth 

In-house; grant fund Local; sub-regional £1,100,000 

Bridgend County 
Business Future 

Scoping programme 

Grant fund to support 
feasibility of longer-

term options for 
diversification, 

decarbonise and 
growth 

In-house; grant fund Local; sub-regional £425,000 

Bridgend County 
Centres of Enterprise 

Capital support to 
create more diverse 

business 
accommodation 

In-house; commission; 
procurement 

Local £3,500,000 

Bridgend County 
Local Enterprise 

Support Programme 

Networking, training 
and development for 

local businesses 

In-house; commission; 
procurement 

Local £450,000 

Bridgend County 
Tourism Events 

Support 

Tiered grant fund to 
support events across 

the County 

In-house; grant fund Local £450,000 

Bridgend County 
Local Destination 

Management & 
Marketing 

Product-led marketing 
campaigns 

In-house; commission; 
procurement 

Local £150,000 

Bridgend County 
Prosperity Co-

Production 
Framework 

Core fund to support 
deliverability across all 

themes 

In-house; grant fund Local £1,000,000 

    £7,075,000 

 

  

Page 39

http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/


 
 
 www.bridgend.gov.uk 

 
18 

 

People and Skills 
Proposals Activities Delivery model Delivery level Current proposed 

value 
 

CELT+ Bridgend 
Inspire 2 Work / 

Achieve 

Support for NEETS In-house; Commission; 
procurement 

Local £3,150,000 

CELT + Employability 
-Bridgend County 

Employability support 
for employees to 

improve labour market 
position 

In-house; Commission; 
procurement 

Local and regional co-
ordination 

£4,000,000 

CELT+ Regional 
Joint Commissioning 

Support for local 
employers to improve 

the skills of their 
workforce 

Commission; 
procurement; grant 

fund 

Sub-regional; regional £875,000 

Multiply – Bridgend 
County 

Adult numeracy 
support programme 

In-house; Commission; 
procurement 

Local; sub-regional; 
regional 

£3,990,295 

Bridgend County 
Prosperity Co-

production 
Framework (cross-

cutting) 

Core fund to support 
deliverability across all 

themes 

In-house; grant fund Local £1,000,000 

    £13,015,295 

 

Page 40

http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/


 

 

BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

REPORT TO SUBJECT OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 3 
 

26 SEPTEMBER 2022 
 

REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR COMMUNITIES 
 

LEVELLING UP FUND PRIORITY PROJECTS 
 

 
1. Purpose of report 

 
The purpose of this report is to provide the Committee with background on the UK 
Government Levelling Up Fund (LUF), and to provide an update on the 
development of projects previously endorsed by Cabinet, and submitted to the fund.  
 
 

2. Connection to corporate well-being objectives / other corporate priorities 
 
2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate well-being 

objectives under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015: 
 

• Supporting a successful sustainable economy – taking steps to make the 
county borough a great place to do business, for people to live, work, study 
and visit, and to ensure that our schools are focused on raising the skills, 
qualifications and ambitions for all people in the county borough. 
 

• Helping people to be more healthy and resilient – taking steps to reduce 
or prevent people from becoming vulnerable or dependent on the Council 
and its services. Supporting individuals and communities to build resilience, 
and enable them to develop solutions to have active, healthy and 
independent lives. 

 

• Smarter use of resources – ensure that all resources (financial, physical, 
ecological, human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently 
as possible and support the creation of resources throughout the community 
that can help to deliver the Council’s well-being objectives. 

 
 
3. Background 
 
3.1 The LUF was announced by the UK Government at the 2020 Spending Review. In 

March 2021 the Government set aside an initial £4 billion for the LUF for England 
over the next four years (up to 2024-25) and a minimum of £800 million for 
Scotland, Wales and Northern Ireland. As such, up to £4.8 billion until 2024-25 will 
be available in the LUF across the UK.  

3.2 The UK Government will use the new financial assistance powers in the United 
Kingdom Internal Market Act 2020 (UKIM Act) to make the LUF available to the 
whole of the UK, with financial support provided directly to Local Authorities in 
Wales from Whitehall. 

Page 41

Agenda Item 5



 

 

3.3 The LUF is jointly managed by HM Treasury (HMT), the Ministry of Housing, 
Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) and the Department for Transport 
(DfT). A Department for Wales has been set up to engage with and provide support 
directly to Welsh Local Authorities.  

3.4 The LUF will invest in local infrastructure and capital projects that have a visible 
impact on people and their communities. This includes a range of high value local 
investment priorities, including local transport schemes, urban and economic 
regeneration projects and supporting cultural assets.  

3.5 A prospectus was published on guidance and priorities relating to the LUF. 
Alongside the prospectus UK Government published a ‘priority area’ ranking, with 
each local area ranking between 1 and 3. As part of this ranking Bridgend was 
given a priority category 1, which represents the highest need for the LUF. 

3.6 The LUF programme is competitive, despite a ranking system for priority. There are 
no set allocations for each area and each application will be reviewed on merit.  

3.7 It is important to note that Local Authorities can only receive funding for one bid for 
every Member of Parliament (MP) whose constituency lies wholly within their 
boundary. The UK Government would also like to see MPs express support for one 
bid that they see as a priority, but it is not a requirement of the bidding process for 
MPs to have expressed their support. Each Local Authority is also eligible to make 
one additional bid for potential transport projects in the area. This enables Bridgend 
County Borough Council (BCBC) to make 3 bids in total - one for each constituency, 
Bridgend and Ogmore, and a third for a strategic transport project. 

3.8 Each constituency bid can be up to the value of £20m. However, there is also scope 
for investing in larger, high-value transport projects, allowing for bids of up to £50m, 
with each bid being encouraged to contribute a minimum of 10% funding from local 
and third-party contributions.  

3.9 The first round of funding, which opened for applications in June 2021, saw £1.7 
billion awarded to 105 projects across the UK. Six Local Authorities in Wales made 
successful bids, with 10 projects in total being supported.  

4. Current situation/proposal  
 
4.1  Officers presented a report to Cabinet in November 2021 setting out the potential 

projects identified within each constituency which could be developed further to 
meet the objectives and criteria of the fund and would be able to be delivered within 
the timeframe of the programme.  

 
4.2  Officers have also had the ability to take advice from successful applicants, consult 

with the UK Government, Cities and Local Growth Unit, Regional Team and review 
amendments to the round two technical advice note which has enabled thoughts to 
be galvanized in relation to the projects and position previously endorsed by 
Cabinet.  

 
4.3  Officers have discussed the position in relation to the LUF with the local MPs for 

both the Ogmore and Bridgend constituencies, and will present further detail of the 
projects in advance of the funding deadline to confirm their endorsement. 

Page 42



 

 

4.4  Applications for round two of funding initially had to be submitted in full by midday 
on Wednesday 6 July 2022, with any information submitted after this deadline not 
considered as part of an application. This was subsequently postponed to Tuesday 
2 August. Following a three month assessment period, decisions are anticipated to 
be announced in Autumn 2022.   

 
4.5  Outlined below are updates on those constituency projects which officers previously 

reported to Cabinet, setting out the current position and proposals for the way 
forward.    

 
Bridgend Constituency proposed project: Porthcawl Pavilion Redevelopment.  

 
4.6  The LUF prospectus sets out a clear agenda to support cultural investment. To 

maintain, regenerate, or creatively repurpose museums, galleries, visitor attractions 
(and associated green spaces) and heritage assets as well as creating new 
community-owned spaces to support the arts and serve as cultural spaces.  

 
  Following a review of the round 2 technical guidance, officers are confident that the 

pavilion project continues to strongly meet the objectives of the fund and that the 
pace of development work will enable a robust application to be made.  

 
4.7  The project has been in development since 2016 when Awen Cultural Trust (Awen), 

in partnership with BCBC, commissioned a study on the options for enhancing and 
re-developing the Grade II Listed building. The study considered the physical, 
artistic and social significance of the Grand Pavilion; provided a high level appraisal 
of its condition; considered the possible treatment of the historic building for 
renovation and concept designs that could unlock new social and commercially 
sustainable benefits. 

 
4.8  The principal objectives of the renewal of the Grand Pavilion have been to address 

the issues of risk to the building fabric that exist in the condition of the concrete 
structure whilst also meeting the needs and aspirations of local people for extended 
and improved arts, heritage and library services. 

 
4.9  The new facilities proposed within the most recent feasibility work on the Grand 

Pavilion include: 
• New function spaces at first floor (Esplanade) level, 
• New rooftop function and cafe spaces offering elevated sea-views across 
 the Bristol Channel, 
• New Studio theatre and ancillary facilities,  
• Increased and improved welfare facilities including new changing places 

facility, 
• Business incubation or workshop spaces to street level, 
• New office facilities. 

 
4.10  BCBC committed a sum of £210,000 to the development for this project from 

BCBC’s Feasibility Funding budget. RIBA Stage 3 design work was completed in 
order to support the application, and was packaged to present a well progressed, 
detailed and fully costed application.   

 
 

Page 43



 

 

4.11  It is acknowledged that the delivery of this project will require significant financial 
and grant investment. In addition to the LUF application is a need to submit an 
expression of interest to the National Heritage Lottery Fund to secure further 
development and capital funding. There has already been positive early discussions 
with the National Heritage Lottery Fund, however due to the timing of bidding 
rounds, submitting an application has not yet been possible, and as such, at the 
point of submitting an application to the LUF, Council agreed to underwrite the 
match funding by building a sum of £1,999,800 into the capital programme at its 
meeting in July 2022. Any change to this requirement will be reported back to 
Cabinet and Council as necessary. 

 
4.12  The re-development of the Grand Pavilion clearly represents an opportunity for a 

flagship and legacy capital scheme. It is also a key component of the wider 
Porthcawl Regeneration Programme being pursued.  

 
 
  Ogmore Constituency proposed project  
 
4.13  Within the previous report endorsed by Cabinet, officers sought agreement to 

pursue a Bridgend Enterprise Development Project, which officers felt was the most 
advantageous project to meet local needs and achieve the aspirations of the 
Levelling Up programme, by delivering commercial and employment space in key 
locations. 

 
4.14  Despite officers’ views that we would be able to develop a strong bid which met 

local needs, UK Government Levelling Up officials have been unsupportive of this 
project, and in a number of meetings impressed on us that they did not believe that 
this project would be successful and would not find favour during the assessment 
process.   

 
4.15  Officers have, in tandem with this process, now identified other potential funding 

sources which could be available to support the development of our Bridgend 
Enterprise Development Project, and therefore previous development work can still 
be capitalised on to deliver badly needed employment space within the Ogmore 
constituency.   

 
4.16  Despite having considered other strategic opportunities within the constituency 

area, there has not been a mandate to develop any other projects further, to a point 
where officers could recommend the submission of an alternative project at this 
point.     

 
4.17  Officers would like to take the opportunity to identify an alternative strategic project 

and potential partners to develop a bid for the communities of the Llynfi, Garw and 
Ogmore Valleys, in anticipation of a potential further bidding round.  

 
 
Bridgend Transport Proposal : Penprysg Railway Bridge  
 

4.18 The Penprysg railway bridge proposal has been a long-standing infrastructure 
project for Bridgend and is included in the current and replacement Local 
Development Plan (LDP) as well as predecessor land use plans.  

 

Page 44



 

 

4.19 This project will result in the rebuilding of the Penprysg road bridge so that it can 
accommodate two-way traffic leading to the eventual closure of Pencoed’s railway 
level crossing, and an all-new active travel bridge for pedestrians and cyclists.  

 
4.20 The Pencoed level crossing is on the South Wales mainline railway as well as local 

Metro routes.  When in operation there is a resultant build up of road traffic leading 
to significant congestion in the town centre.  The current alternative road bridge on 
Penprysg Road is a substandard single lane with limited pedestrian/active travel 
provision.  

 
4.21 Due to these constraints, there is a longstanding moratorium on development west 

of the level crossing. The plans will also unlock potential development land located 
to the west of the current level crossing and enable fresh investment and facilities to 
be introduced. 

 
4.22 Once the level crossing is closed, the proposal also provides the opportunity to 

enhance the public realm in and around the commercial area at the level crossing 
and to enhance the local environment.  

 
4.23 Only 23 transport specific projects were successful across the UK in the first round, 

the majority of which are large projects. The process for larger scale projects 
requires a significant amount of additional detail to support the application.  

 
4.24 This is a highly complex and challenging project to deliver, however, there is 

confidence that this project which is being developed in conjunction with Network 
Rail and through a working group comprising the MP, Member of the Senedd (MS), 
BCBC Members (including the Leader and Cabinet Members), Town Council 
representatives, technical officers, Office of the Secretary of State for Wales,  
Network Rail and Transport for Wales, will present a well considered and supported 
project. A public consultation exercise took place in the Autumn of 2021. 

 
4.25 The timeframe for the completion of this project will go beyond that of the LUF’s 

current programme for projects to be completed by March 2025. The guidance 
notes state that in exceptional circumstances a project would need to demonstrate 
completion by March 2026. This has been made explicit within the application form.  

 
4.26 An internal project management and governance structure is being set up to lead 

the project and will further progress the design and development work in tandem 
with the submission of the LUF bid. 

 
4.27  Post application this project will require significant detailed design work to continue, 

and until such a time as the design is complete a definitive cost cannot be 
established. Work to date puts the cost close to £25m, which is the value requested 
in the LUF bid. The value of match funding currently set aside within the capital 
programme for this scheme is £2,500,000, which Council approved in July 2022. 
This amount will be reviewed and confirmed prior to acceptance of any successful 
award of LUF funding. Should the figure change then subsequent reports will be 
presented to Cabinet and Council as required. 

 
4.28  The value of the project would place it into the ‘large transport scheme’ category 

and therefore there will be a need for a more substantial financial and economic 
case. This additional information is currently being procured using external 

Page 45



 

 

consultants to provide more detailed financial information and set up a project 
scope, funded from existing approved capital budgets, as outlined in paragraph 8.7. 

 
 
5. Effect upon policy framework and procedure rules 
 
5.1 There is no direct impact on the Council’s policy framework and procedure rules. 
 
6. Equality Act 2010 implications 
 
6.1  The protected characteristics identified within the Equality Act, Socio-economic Duty 

and the impact on the use of the Welsh Language have been considered in the 
preparation of this report. As a public body in Wales the Council must consider the 
impact of strategic decisions, such as the development or the review of policies, 
strategies, services and functions. It is considered that there will be no significant or 
unacceptable equality impacts as a result of this report.   

 

 
7. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 implications  
 
7.1 The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 Assessment based on the 

5 ways of working has been considered and there are no significant or 
unacceptable impacts upon the achievement of well-being goals/objectives: 

 

• Long Term - Investment in and redevelopment of major infrastructure is 
critical to developing confidence in and growing the economy, ensuring local 
investment while providing the ability to operate across the region and 
beyond. Investment in some of our major assets is also essential to secure 
their long term sustainability and contribution to the reduction in carbon 
emissions of our infrastructure and assets.   

• Prevention - Investment in assets now will prevent further decline in the 
integrity of our structures. It will also prevent a decline in local environment 
and the quality of business and employment facilities within our communities.  

• Integration - These projects will ensure that local cultural facilities, and better 
public transport facilities will be provided and integrated into the local 
communities. The public will be able to make better use of existing facilities 
and will be provided with greater employment and social opportunity within 
their communities. 

• Collaboration - The success of the suite of projects will be founded on cross 
sector working and collaborative effort with partners and stakeholders to use 
creative and cultural activity to improve population well-being. 

• Involvement - These are two very different projects being proposed with 
levels of engagement varying significantly to date. However, the success of 
each project will rest of the effective engagement with key public and 
operational stakeholders. This will be through formal channels such as 
Weltag and more informal conversations with critical partners.   

 
8. Financial implications   
 
8.1 Two bids have been submitted for funding in round two of the LUF programme.  
 

Page 46



 

 

8.2 Early design work was completed and fully costed in order to submit the 
applications.  

 
8.3 The LUF application encourages a minimum 10% match funding requirement for 

each project. As the details of the delivery costs related to each project emerges 
following further detailed design work, both projects will be seeking the support of 
partner organisations and other external funding sources to support the total cost of 
the delivery of the projects. However, at this point match funding from external 
sources has not been secured.  

 
8.4 This report sets out the anticipated value of the match funding requirements, until 

such a point as officers have been able to identify and apply for additional funding 
from alternative partners and funding sources.   

 
8.5 The total project costs submitted for these projects as part of the LUF applications, 

are as follows:  
 

Porthcawl Grand Pavilion redevelopment 

Total Project Cost £19,998m 

Match funding requirement £1,999,800 

 

Penprysg Road Bridgend Replacement and Pencoed Level Crossing Closure  

Total Project Cost £25m 

Match funding requirement  £2,500,000 

 
 
8.6 The match funding requirement for the two projects is £4,499,800, for which funding 

has been set aside in the capital programme, and demonstration of a commitment 
to match fund the schemes is a requirement of the funding bids. 

 
8.7 It was approved at Council on 15 June 2022 as part of the Capital Programme 

Update report to include a financial allocation of £500,000 towards the Penprysg 
Road Bridge Scheme, for continuing the design of the bridge with Network Rail and 
to undertake additional engineering solutions as a result of the recent public 
consultation. 

 
 
9. Recommendations 
 
9.1 It is recommended that Subject Overview and Scrutiny Committee 3 Note the 

overview and update on the application process associated with the LUF.   
 
 

Janine Nightingale 
CORPORATE DIRECTOR – COMMUNITIES 

15th September 2022 
 

Contact Officer: Delyth Webb  
Group Manager Strategic Regeneration  
 
Jonathan Parsons 
Group Manager Planning & Development Services 

Page 47



 

 

 
Telephone:  (01656) 815207 
 
E-mail:  Delyth.Webb@Bridgend.gov.uk 
   Jonathan.Parsons@Bridgend.gov.uk 
 
 
Postal Address: Bridgend County Borough Council, Communities Directorate, Angel 

Street, Bridgend, CF31 4WB 
 
 
 
Background documents: 
Levelling Up Fund Technical Note – UK wide 
Levelling Up Fund Priority Projects Cabinet Report dated 16th November 2021 
 

Page 48

mailto:Delyth.Webb@Bridgend.gov.uk
mailto:Jonathan.Parsons@Bridgend.gov.uk


 

BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

REPORT TO SUBJECT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 3 
 

26 SEPTEMBER 2022 
 

REPORT OF THE CHIEF OFFICER - LEGAL & REGULATORY SERVICES, HR AND 
CORPORATE POLICY 

 
FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME UPDATE  

 
1. Purpose of report  
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to: 

 
a) Present the Committee with the Forward Work Programme (Appendix A) for 

consideration and approval; 
 
b) Request any specific information the Committee identifies to be included in the 

items for the next two meetings, including invitees they wish to attend; 
 

c) Request the Committee to identify whether there are presently any further items 
for consideration on the Forward Work Programme having regard to the 
selection criteria in paragraph 4.3; 
 

d) Present the Recommendations Monitoring Action Sheet (Appendix B) to track 
responses to the Committee’s recommendations made at the previous 
meetings; 
 

e) Advise that the Committee’s updated Forward Work Programme and 
Recommendations Monitoring Action Sheet will be reported to the next meeting 
of Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee (COSC). 

 
2. Connection to corporate well-being objectives / other corporate priorities 

 
2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate well-being 

objectives under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015: 
 

• Supporting a successful sustainable economy – taking steps to make the 
county borough a great place to do business, for people to live, work, study 
and visit, and to ensure that our schools are focussed on raising the skills, 
qualifications and ambitions for all people in the county borough.  

 

• Helping people and communities to be more healthy and resilient - 
taking steps to reduce or prevent people from becoming vulnerable or 
dependent on the Council and its services.  Supporting individuals and 
communities to build resilience, and enable them to develop solutions to 
have active, healthy and independent lives. 
 

• Smarter use of resources – ensure that all resources (financial, physical, 
ecological, human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently 

Page 49

Agenda Item 7



 

as possible and support the creation of resources throughout the community 
that can help to deliver the Council’s well-being objectives. 

 
3. Background 
 
3.1 The Council’s Constitution requires the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

to develop and implement a Forward Work Programme for the Committee. 
 
3.2 The Council’s Constitution also provides for each Subject Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee to propose items for the Forward Work Programme having regard to the 
Council’s Corporate Priorities and Risk Management framework, for the Corporate 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee to have oversight. 

 
 Best Practice / Guidance 
 
3.3 The Centre for Governance and Scrutiny’s (CfGS) Good Scrutiny Guide recognises 

the importance of the Forward Work Programme. In order to ‘lead and own the 
process’, it states that Councillors should have ownership of their Committee’s work 
programme, and be involved in developing, monitoring and evaluating it. The Good 
Scrutiny Guide also states that, in order to make an impact, the scrutiny workload 
should be coordinated and integrated into corporate processes, to ensure that it 
contributes to the delivery of corporate objectives, and that work can be undertaken 
in a timely and well-planned manner.  

 
3.4 Forward Work Programmes need to be manageable to maximise the effective use 

of the limited time and resources of Scrutiny Committees.  It is not possible to 
include every topic proposed.  Successful scrutiny is about looking at the right topic 
in the right way and Members need to be selective, while also being able to 
demonstrate clear arguments for including or excluding topics.  

 
3.5   The CfGS guide to effective work programming ‘A Cunning Plan?’ makes the following 

reference to the importance of good work programming: 
 

‘Effective work programming is the bedrock of an effective scrutiny function. Done 
well it can help lay the foundations for targeted, incisive and timely work on issues 
of local importance, where scrutiny can add value. Done badly, scrutiny can end up 
wasting time and resources on issues where the impact of any work done is likely to 
be minimal.’ 

 
 Forward Work Programme 
  
3.6 Following the approval of the schedule of Scrutiny Committee meeting dates at the 

Annual Meeting of Council on 18th May 2022, the scheduling of standing statutory 
reports to Scrutiny Committees upon: the Medium Term Financial Strategy, 
Performance, the Corporate Plan, Budget Monitoring, etc. were mapped to the 
appropriate timed COSC meeting dates into a draft Forward Work Programme. 

 
3.7  The draft Forward Work Programme for each Scrutiny Committee has been 

prepared using a number of different sources, including:  
 

• Corporate Risk Assessment;  

• Directorate Business Plans; 

Page 50



 

• Previous Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme report topics / Minutes; 

• Committee / Member proposed topics; 

• Policy Framework; 

• Cabinet Work Programme; 

• Discussions with Corporate Directors; 

• Performance Team regarding the timing of performance information.  
 
3.8 There are items where there is a statutory duty for Policy Framework documents to 

be considered by Scrutiny, e.g. the MTFS including draft budget proposals scheduled 
for consideration in December 2022, following which the COSC will coordinate the 
conclusions and recommendations from each of the Subject Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees in a report on the overall strategic overview of Cabinet’s draft Budget 
proposals to the meeting of Cabinet in February 2023.   

 
3.9 An effective FWP identifies the issues that the Committee wishes to focus on during 

the year and provides a clear plan.  However, at each meeting the Committee will 
have an opportunity to review this as the Forward Work Programme Update will be a 
standing item on the Agenda, detailing which items are scheduled for future meetings 
and be requested to clarify any information to be included in reports and the list of 
invitees.  The FWP will remain flexible and will be reported to each COSC meeting 
with feedback from each SOSC FWP and any updated information gathered from 
FWP meetings with Scrutiny Chairs and Corporate Directors. 

 
4. Current situation/proposal 
 
4.1 The Committee approved its Forward Work Programme at its previous meeting. 
 
4.2 The Committee’s Forward Work Programme will also be reported to the Corporate 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee, for coordination and oversight of the overall FWP.   
 
 Identification of Further Items 
 
4.3 The Committee is reminded of the Criteria Form which Members can use to 

propose further items for the FWP which the Committee can then consider for 
prioritisation at a future meeting.  The Criteria Form emphasises the need to 
consider issues such as impact, risk, performance, budget and community 
perception when identifying topics for investigation and to maximise the impact 
scrutiny can have on a topic and the outcomes for people.  Criteria which can help 
the Committee come to a decision on whether to include a referred topic, are set out 
below: 

 
  Recommended Criteria for Selecting Scrutiny Topics: 
 
 PUBLIC INTEREST:  The concerns of local people should influence the issues 

chosen for scrutiny;  
 
 ABILITY TO CHANGE:  Priority should be given to issues that the Committee 

can realistically influence, and add value to;  
 
 PERFORMANCE:  Priority should be given to the areas in which the Council 

is not performing well;  

Page 51



 

 EXTENT:  Priority should be given to issues that are relevant to all 
or large parts of the County Borough; or a large number 
of the Authority’s service users or its population; 

 
 REPLICATION:  Work programmes must take account of what else is 

happening in the areas being considered to avoid 
duplication or wasted effort.  

 
 Reasons to Reject Scrutiny Topics: 
 

 • The issue is already being addressed / being examined elsewhere and change is   
              imminent.  

 • The topic would be better addressed elsewhere (and can be referred there).  

 • Scrutiny involvement would have limited / no impact upon outcomes. 

 • The topic may be sub-judice or prejudicial. 

 • The topic is too broad to make a review realistic and needs refining / scoping. 

 • New legislation or guidance relating to the topic is expected within the next year.  

 • The topic area is currently subject to inspection or has recently undergone  
    substantial change / reconfiguration. 
 

Corporate Parenting 
 

4.4 Corporate Parenting is the term used to describe the responsibility of a Local 
Authority towards looked after children and young people. This is a legal 
responsibility given to local authorities by the Children Act 1989 and the Children 
Act 2004. The role of the Corporate Parent is to seek for children in public care the 
outcomes every good parent would want for their own children. The Council as a 
whole is the ‘corporate parent’, therefore all Members have a level of responsibility 
for the children and young people looked after by Bridgend. 

 
4.5 In this role, it is suggested that Members consider how each item they consider 

affects children in care and care leavers, and in what way can the Committee assist 
in these areas. 
 

4.6 Scrutiny Champions can greatly support the Committee in this by advising them of 
the ongoing work of the Corporate Parenting Cabinet Committee and particularly 
any decisions or changes which they should be aware of as Corporate Parents. 

 
4.7 The Forward Work Programme for this Committee is attached as Appendix A. 
 
4.8 The Recommendations Monitoring Action Sheet to track responses to the 

Committee’s recommendations at the previous meeting is attached as Appendix B. 
 
5. Effect upon policy framework and procedure rules 
 
5.1 The work of the Overview & Scrutiny Committees relates to the review and 

development of plans, policy or strategy that form part of the Council’s Policy 
Framework and consideration of plans, policy or strategy relating to the power to 
promote or improve economic, social or environmental wellbeing in the County 
Borough of Bridgend. 

 
 

Page 52



 

6. Equality Act 2010 implications  
 
6.1 The protected characteristics identified within the Equality Act, Socio-economic 

Duty and the impact on the use of the Welsh language have been considered in the 
preparation of this report. As a public body in Wales, the Council must consider the 
impact of strategic decisions, such as the development or the review of policies, 
strategies, services and functions.  It is considered that there will be no significant 
or unacceptable equality impacts as a result of this report.  

 
7. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 implications 
 
7.1 The Act provides the basis for driving a different kind of public service in Wales, 

with 5 ways of working to guide how public services should work to deliver for 
people. The following is a summary to show how the 5 ways of working to achieve 
the well-being goals have been used to formulate the recommendations within this 
report:  

 

• Long-term - The approval of this report will assist in the planning of Scrutiny 
business in both the short-term and in the long-term on its policies, budget and 
service delivery.  

 

• Prevention - The early preparation of the Forward Work Programme allows for 
the advance planning of Scrutiny business where Members are provided an 
opportunity to influence and improve decisions before they are made by 
Cabinet.  

 

• Integration - The report supports all the wellbeing objectives.  
 

• Collaboration - Consultation on the content of the Forward Work Programme 
has taken place with the Corporate Management Board, Heads of Service, 
Elected Members and members of the public.  

 

• Involvement - Advanced publication of the Forward Work Programme ensures 
that the public and stakeholders can view topics that will be discussed in 
Committee meetings and are provided with the opportunity to engage. 

 
8. Financial implications 
 
8.1 There are no financial implications directly associated with this report. 

 
9. Recommendations 
 
9.1  The Committee is recommended to: 
 

a) Consider and approve the Forward Work Programme attached as Appendix A;  
 

b) Identify any specific information the Committee wishes to be included in the 
items for the next two meetings, including invitees they wish to attend; 
 

c) Identify any further items for consideration on the Forward Work Programme 
having regard to the selection criteria in paragraph 4.3 of this report; 

 

Page 53



 

d) Note the Recommendations Monitoring Action Sheet to track responses to the 
Committee’s recommendations made at the previous meetings, attached as 
Appendix B; 
 

e) Note that the Forward Work Programme, Recommendations Monitoring Action 
Sheet and any updates from the Committee will be reported to the next meeting 
of COSC. 

 
 
Kelly Watson 
Chief Officer – Legal & Regulatory Services, HR and Corporate Policy 
20 September 2022 

 
 

Contact Officers:  Meryl Lawrence 
    Senior Democratic Services Officer - Scrutiny 
 
    Lucy Beard 

 Scrutiny Officer 
 
 Jessica McLellan 

Scrutiny Officer 
 
Telephone:   (01656) 643515 / 643613 / 643263 
 
Email:   scrutiny@bridgend.gov.uk  
 
Postal address:  Democratic Services - Scrutiny 
    Bridgend County Borough Council 
    Civic Offices 
    Angel Street 
    Bridgend 
    CF31 4WB 

 
Background documents: None. 
 

Page 54

mailto:scrutiny@bridgend.gov.uk


Forward Work Programme                            APPENDIX A                            
Subject Overview and Scrutiny Committee 3: 
 
 

Date of 
Meeting: 

Report Topics: 

 
Monday 
18 July 
9.30am 

 
- Corporate Parenting Champion Nomination 
- Nomination to the Public Service Board Scrutiny Panel 
- Draft Outline Forward Work Programme 

 
Monday 
26 September  
4pm 

 
- Shared Prosperity Fund  
- Levelling Up Fund  

 
Monday 
14 November 
4pm 

 
- Corporate Joint Committees Regional Responsibilities  

 
Monday 
12 December 
 4pm 

- Draft Medium Term Financial Strategy 2022-23 to 2025-26 
and Budget Proposals * 

- Corporate Joint Committees Regional Responsibilities  

 
Monday 
20 February 
4pm 

- A report upon Porthcawl Regeneration to include 
Porthcawl Regeneration projects, the PRIF (Porthcawl 
Resort Investment forecast), Cosy Corner and the 
Grand Pavilion.  

- Bridgend 2030 Net Zero Carbon Strategy Local 
- Biodiversity Action Plan  

Monday 
17 April   
4pm 

- Bridgend 2030 Net Zero Carbon Strategy Local 
- Biodiversity Action Plan move 
- Future Waste Services Work Streams 

  

 
Date to be 
scheduled 
 
 

- A report upon accessible playground equipment in 
play areas and access to play areas, parks and playing 
field pavilions, for the disabled community across the 
County Borough, and the latest Assessment and 
Action Plan in accordance with Equalities legislation. 
(Cross Directorate Report) 

 

* If the Budget Settlement is received late as in recent years, the scrutiny of the Draft 

MTFS and Budget Proposals will need to be moved to a meeting date to be 

convened after Cabinet in January 2023. 

 
 
 
 

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B  

 
 

Subject Overview and Scrutiny Committee 3 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS MONITORING ACTION SHEET 
 

Date of Meeting Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome 

 
18 July 2022 
 
 
 

 
Corporate Parenting 
Champion 
Nomination 

 
Councillor Jonathan Pratt was 
nominated to represent Subject 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
3 as an invitee to meetings of the 
Cabinet Committee Corporate 
Parenting. 

 
Scrutiny / Chief 
Officer – Legal 
and Regulatory 
Services, HR and 
Corporate Policy 

 
ACTIONED – Membership of 
Corporate Parenting Cabinet 
Committee updated and formally 
reported to Cabinet 19 July 2022. 

 
18 July 2022 

 
Nomination to the 
Public Service Board 
Scrutiny Panel 

 
Councillor Colin Davies was 
nominated to sit on the Public 
Service Board Scrutiny Panel.             

 
Scrutiny  

 
ACTIONED – Membership of 
Public Service Board Scrutiny 
Panel updated and initial Briefing 
session arrangements underway.  
 

 
18 July 2022 

 
Forward Work 
Programme Update 

 
The Committee requested the 
following representatives be 
invited for the following reports 
scheduled for the September 
meeting: 
 

 
Scrutiny 

 
ACTIONED – Requested Invitees 
have been invited to attend the 
September meeting of the 
Committee.  

P
age 57



Appendix B  

 
 

Date of Meeting Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome 

- For the Shared Prosperity 
Fund report, the 
appropriate lead Officers. 

- For the Levelling Up Fund 
report, the appropriate 
lead Officers and a 
representative of Awen 
Cultural Trust, as 
management of the Grand 
Pavilion, Porthcawl.  

  
 

P
age 58


	Agenda
	3 Cymeradwyaeth Cofnodion
	Minutes , 18/07/2022 Subject Overview and Scrutiny Committee 3

	4 Cronfa Ffyniant Gyffredin y Deyrnas Unedig
	4A. UKSPF Appendix 1 v1.1

	5 Prosiectau Blaenoriaeth y Gronfa Lefelu i Fyny
	7 Diweddariad Rhaglen Gwaith
	7a. Appendix A - Draft Outline FWP SOSC 3
	7b. Appendix B - Action Sheet SOSC 3


